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. Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC
Company Information

Hitachi Capital Corporation, a cormpany incorporated in Japan, is the parent undertaking of the smallest and the
largest Group to consolidate the financial statements of Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC ("HCUK"). Copies of the
financial statements of this company can be obtained from its registered office: No 3-1, Nishi Shimbashi, 1
Chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-0003, Japan.

Chairman . G. Munnoch

Chief executive R. Gordon
Officer
Directors H. Fukuro
R. Gordon
A. Hughes
G. Munnoch )
Y. Ohashi ' .
A. Whitaker ' )

Company secretary  JN.M. Sims

Registered office Hitachi Capital House
’ Thorpe Road
Staines-upon-Thames
Surrey
TW18 3HP

Auditors Ernst & Young LLP
’ 25 Churchill Place
London
El14 SEY

The Group offers the following finance solutions from the locations shown below.

Consumer Finance ’ ) ’ ' . . -
2 Apex View, and Interchange House, Leeds, West Yorkshire, LS11 9BH, Tel: 0344 375 5500

Business Finance and European Vendor Solutions

Hitachi Capital House, Thorpe Road, Staines-upon—Thames, Tel: 01784 227 322

Invoice Finance
5 Hollinswood Court, Stafford Park 1, Telford, Shropshire, TF3 3DE, Tel: 01952 213 300

Vehicle Solutions
Kiln House, Kiln Road, Newbury, Berkshire, RG14 2NU, Tel: 0344 463 2900
Hakuba House, White Horse Business Park, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 OFL, Tel: 01225 777 710
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC

Overvnew

The directors present their strategic report for Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC (the Cbmpany) and its subsidiaries (the
Group) for the year ended 31 March 2018. The group financial statements comprise the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, including its subsidiaries as defined by International Financial Reporting Standards
‘(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

‘At a Glance

Who we are : €
Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC is a leading financial services company with over 35 years’ experlence in providing
innovative finance solutions to enable consumers and businesses to grow and prosper. We are a wholly owned
subsidiary of Hitachi Capital Corporation, one of Japan’s largest non-bank financial institutions and an affiliate
of Hitachi Limited, a world leader for manufacturing and technology and Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group. We
are authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA).

Our vision, mission and values

Our vision is to be the trusted brand of financial services in the UK and across Europe, with a mission of
exceptional people providing outstanding customer experiences today. Our values are based upon the foundmg
values at Hitachi Limited, being “Harmony”, “Sincerity” and “Pioneering spirit”.

What we do

The Group has Net Earning Assets* of £4. 8bn with over 1,200 employees serving consumers and smaill to
medium enterprises (SMEs) as well as corporate multinationals in the UK and mainland Europe. We focus on .
markets where we can provide innovative solutions’ whlch require high service levels and commitment to
customer care.

Net Earmng Assets* £4.8bn
Profit before tax £116.4m

*Net Earning Assets = Loans and receivables + Operating leased assets
Our target sectors

Consumer Finance

Hitachi Capital Consumer Finance is the UK’s leadmg retail point of sale finance provider and also has a
significant presence in both the motor finance and personal loans sectors, serving over 1.2 million UK
customers with £23 billion of consumer lending during the year ended 31 March 2018. The business has over
30 years of experience and works with some of the leading high street retailers. It continues to be an active
partner for retailers in the UK, providing sales support consistently through economic cycles, having increased
lending year on year for the last ten years.

Vehicle Solutions :

Hitachi Capital Vehicle Solutions has more than 25 years of experience of providing bespoke vehicle funding
and fleet management services for business car leasing and specialist commercial vehicles as well as personal
contract hire. Offering a variety of financing options including contract hire, contract purchase, finance and
operating leasing, Hitachi Capital Vehicle Solutions also provides advice regarding health and safety as well as
fleet environmental impact.
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC
"Overview (continued)

Business Finance

Hitachi Capltal Business Finance is a leading provnder of business asset finance in sectors including transport,
agriculture, construction, manufacturing, materials handling and financial services providers. Working through
finance brokers and with manufacturers directly, our products include hire purchase, operatmg lease, finance
lease, block discounting, stock finance and syndlcatxon services. .

Invoice Finance )
Hitachi Capital Invoice Finance provides cash flow solutions to over 700 clients across a wide range of sectors
in the UK and places great emphasis on providing outstanding service to UK SMEs.

European Vendor Solutions

The European Vendor Solutions business unit executes the Hitachi Capital Corporation common strategy in
Europe. European Vendor Solutions arranges, provides and guarantees funding for a variety of Hitachi and
Mitsubishi products and services in markets throughout Europe. These facilities are arranged through strategic
local partners or provided directly by Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC. ~ '
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC
Group Strategic Report
Chairiman's statement : :

Results

The Group continues its track record of delivering strong ﬁnancnal performance. Profits before tax in the last
financial year were £116.4m, representing an increase of 7% over 2017. The Group has achieved-a six fold rise
in profits over the past nine years, which has been extraordinary in a relatively flat period of economic growth.

Outlook
Whilst uncertainty created by Brexit and recent political developments may generally not be conducive for

business, they will also present opportunities. The European Vendor Solutions business unit has opened a

branch in the Netherlands to support our European activities and both Hitachi and Mitsubishi group companies
. across the Continent.

The Group's continuous investment in technology and eCommerce capabilities, alongside several operational
transformational programmes, will position it well to meet its future growth asplratlons whilst enhancing its
focus on customer service and quality.

Governance
The Group takes into account the relevant principles and provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code. The

Group adopts a prudent risk appetite and has a clear focus on market conduct whilst providing fair outcomes for

all our customers is central to our business.

Dividend

The directors are proposing a final dividend of approximately 6.8p (2017: nil) per share totalling £30m (2017: .

£nil). This dividend has not been accrued in the statement of financial position.

I would like to thank our pareni company for its support and my fellow Board members and the employees of
the Company for their contribution in the success we have achieved in the recent financial year and their
commitment in strengthening Hitachi Capital for our future growth.

Guy Munnoch,
Chairman of the Board
28 June 2018
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC
. Group Strategic Report (continued)

Chief Executive Officer's review

In the last financial year, Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC achieved its ninth consecutive year of profitable growth set
against a backdrop of economic uncertainty, particularly around Brexit, with many businesses deferring
investment decisions and above-target inflation acting as a drag on consumer spending. In addition, the Group
embarked on an intense period of transformation to ensure that we have strong foundations to realise our growth
ambitions, deliver fair customer outcomes and manage risk effectively.

2018 » 2017
"Profit before tax (PBT) £116.4m £108.7m
PBT growth ‘ 7.1% 13.0%
New Business Volume £3.5bn £3.0bn
Net Earning Assets . ) ) £4.8bn - © £4.1bn
Pre-tax Return on Net Earnings Assets : ' ‘ 2.4% 2.7%
Bad Debt ratio ' 0.6% 0.5%
Cost income ratio ' © 47.0% 48.0%
Number of employees 1,238 ‘ 1,214
" Effective tax rate : ' 20.2% 21.0%
Post-tax return on equity - o ' 15.7% 17.8%

New Business Volume grew by 17% year on year through growth in all our divisions, particularly Consumer
Finance. This in turn drove a 17% growth in Net Earning Assets. We have experienced an increase in demand
for affordable consumer credit and businesses have sought leasing and hire solutions with increasing frequency
over the last year. HCUK provide award winning flexible solutions. The high level of service we provide is
valued by customers and has resulted in sustained high growth of new.business. However, competitive pressures
have squeezed margins, particularly for our Consumer Finance retail point of sale business, reducing our return
on assets. ' )

We have not sacrificed credit quality to pursue growth. As a result, the Group’s charge for bad debt impairment
reduced year on year to £16.6m (2017: £18.1m), reflecting stability in the credit quality of our portfolios.

Administration Expenses before goodwill impairment increased by £1.4m to £117.8m. During the year we
invested significantly in our employees, IT infrastructure and controls ensuring that we continue to enhance the
capabilities which are crucial for our on-going financial growth. . ’

The effective tax rate fell to 20.2% (2017: 21%). It is expected that the effective tax rate will 'be stable for the
coming year.

. The post-tax return on equity fell to 15.7% (2017: 17.8%) due to increased equity as a result of retaining our
. profits. : : ‘

On 11 October 2017, the Company sold Hitachi Capital Polska Sp. z 0.0., a wholly owned subsidiary, to its
immediate parent company, Hitachi Capital Corporation, for a cash consideration of £3.1m (note 12 to the
financial statements), resulting in a £0.2m profit on disposal. This resulted in a reduction in Hitachi Capital
(UK) PLC headcount by 46 employees. ’
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC
Group Strategic Report (continued)

Chief Executive Officer's review (continued)

During the year, the Group continued to sell tranches of instalment finance receivables to special purpose
entities under two programmes. These transactions resulted in full de-recognition of the financial assets from the
Group’s statement of financial position. Further details are contained in note 28.

During the year, the Group decided to close the defined benefit pension scheme to future accrual with effect
from 5 April 2018. The effect of the closure has been recognised in the income statement. Further details are
contained in note 24. -

Funding

The Group has a central treasury function, which manages the Group’s borrowings in accordance with agreed
policies and procedures. Debt is raised taking into account each business unit’s requirements and portfolio
maturity profile. We raise multi-currency fixed and floating debt in the major global markets. Derivatives are
utilised to mitigate currency and interest rate risks. Analysis of borrowings is detailed in note 14 and derivative
financial instruments are summarised in note 13. Gearing, after reflecting the effect of currency risk hedging, is
7.0 times (2017: 7.0 times) and is well within the limit of 25 times equity set out in the Company’s Articles of
Association.

A year of transformation
Over the last 12 months, we have reviewed all areas-of our business to ensure we have a solid platform to realise
our growth ambitions and, more importantly, ensure that we deliver fair outcomes for our customers.

We have strengthened our compliance, monitoring and quality assurance functions, to ensure we have the
appropriate level of governance and control arrangements in place to support our ambitious growth plans and
our operations within a highly regulated environment.

Whilst we have invested signiﬁcant resource into preparing for the detailed technical requirements of the
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) that came into effect-on 25 May 2018, our ethos has always been to
- take the.custody of our customers’ data very seriously. We continue to invest heavily in our IT infrastructure
across all of our business units, to continually improve security and efficiency and to enhance the experience for
our customers. Specific IT investments are detailed within the Divisional highlights section.

We have delivered rapid expansion in our overseas activities. We now have operations across 13 European
countries, connecting more businesses to Hitachi Ltd’s pioneering technology. To support the European
expansion of the business, we opened a branch office in Amsterdam, Netherlands in September 2017, to provide
vendor finance solutions to Hitachi and Mitsubishi group companies with European head offices based in the

country.

Our people are vital to our success and it is important that all our staff feel part of Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC.
We appreciate and value differences, and we strive to create an engaging environment for everyone to be able to
contribute to the success of the Company.

In April 2018, we reported our gender pay gap figures, a process that we fully support as we look to tackle
inequalities both within the finance industry and more widely. As detailed in the Corporate Social
'Responsibility section, we fully recognise that the Group has a gender pay gap and we are taking a number of
initiatives to bring about the change required to build a more diverse and inclusive work env1ronment
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. Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC

Group Strategic Report (continued)

Chief Executive Officer's review (continued)

Investing in our people to help them fulfil their potential is a crucial element of our vision to be the trusted brand -

of financial services in the UK and Europe, with our mission of exceptional people providing outstanding

. customer experiences. As part of our commitment to developing the talent of the future, we offer enhanced
appremlceshnp training for existing employees. .

Conclusnon and Outlook .

Our strategy of offering value added financial products and superior customer service in our chosen markets has
successfully delivered continued profitable growth. We remain focused on maintaining this trend, through
delivering fair customer outcomes as well as continually improving the end to end customer experience,
underpinned by targeted investment in our IT Infrastructure and people.

A key part of our strategy is to work with, and deepen our relationships with, Hitachi lelted companies and
with Mitsubishi UFJ for the mutual benefit of all parties.

We are confident in the outlook for the business but remain vigilant against potential economic risks. Our
business is well placed to face these potential challenges, through increased diversification across a number of
sectors and concentration on lower-risk products.

The UK is due to exit the European Union on 29 March 2019, bringing with it uncertainty over its future trading
relationships. Our branch in the Netherlands provides us with a base for further expansion into Europe.
Reflecting our overseas growth ambition, the European Vendor Solutions team became a separate division,
European Vendor Solutions, in April 2018. . ) ,

We have stress-tested our portfolio to see how much the UK economy would have to deteriorate before the
Company ceases to be profitable. We projected that bad debt levels would need to increase to 5.6 times the
levels experienced during the last recession before the Company would make a loss. As a business, we are well
capitalised and the projected repayment of the receivables is well in excess of the prOJected debt servicing
throughout the life of the existing assets. - -

On behalf of myself and the Board, 1 would like to take this opportunity to thank employees across Hitachi
Capital (UK) PLC for the hard work and dedication they have put into the business over the past year. We look
forward to continuing to provide our customers with outstanding customer experiences, which we are confident
will help us continue to grow and generate sustainable profit. '

By order of the Board.

R. Gord ) . ) “
Chief Executive Officer
28 June 2018 ;
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' ‘ Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC
_Group Strategic Report (continued) .

Divisional Highlights
Consumer Filnance

Highlights
* Total loans £2.3bn
"« Profit before tax £72.8m )
* 17% increase in PBT over 2016/17 ‘ .
* 1.2 million UK customers :
+ Increased lending for the ninth straight year
» 20% market share in retail point of sale

Results and Strategy :

During the year ended 31 March 2018, we lent more than £2.3bn to over 700, 000 customers and serviced over
1.2 million UK customers. Profit before tax stood at £72.8m, representing an increase of 17% over the previous
year. Hitachi.Capital Consumer Finance has grown significantly over the past decade. While retail point of sale
is Hitachi Capital Consumer Finance’s foundation, with a 20% market share in the retail point of sale sector, we
have seen strong growth in our personal loans and motor finance businesses. Hitachi Capital Consumer Finance
is one of the 10 largest lenders for consumer credit in the UK.

Over half of Hitachi Capital Consumer Finance’s business volume is through retail point<of sale, with a third
comprising personal loans and 10% through motor finance. Hitachi Capital Consumer Finance is well-placed to
continue to grow and make the most of opportunities in this environment.

Retail Point of Sale :
For our retail partners, we combine heritage and stability with strong expertise across many retail sectors and - .
point of sale finance. We understand modern demands from consumers and provide the products that fulfil
them. For example, we can process a customer application for in-store credit within three minutes. Relationship
management offers flexible solutions - pricing can be tailored to a retailer’s own requirements, and our large
retailer partners benefit from dedicated relationship managers. ’

Personal Loans

Our personal loans business, HltaChl Personal Finance, continues to grow. In 2017/18 it lent in excess of £805m,
up from £606m in 2016/17 - a 32.8% increase in business volume. This success is based on a strong proposition
that combines fast decision-making and processing with excellent customer service. On average, Hitachi
Personal Finance processes a loan application every 60 seconds, with 95% of decisions made within 10 seconds
and funds made available within 48 hours following a positive decision.

Our commitment to customer service has seen Hitachi Personal Finance named Best -Personal Loans Provider at

the YourMoney.com Awards for four years running and win the Best Customer’ Satisfaction Strategy Award
2017 from the Institute of Customer Servnce .

Page 8



Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC

Group Strategic Report (continued)

Divisional Highlights

Motor Flnance

Our motor finance proposmon works closely with car dealerships to offer competitive loans against new and -
second-hand vehicles. As we underwrite the individual rather than the asset, lending decisions are based on the
customer's ability to.affordably repay, rather than the perceived residual value of the car. Applications typically
take just three minutes to complete and 95% of decisions are made within 10 seconds. We have also become the
sole provider of ecommerce functionality to eCars247.com, a new and unique online motor dealer offering used
cars.

Vehicle Solutions '

Highlights

* Profit before tax £24m

* 67,600 assets

* Total asset value £882m .
* 20% of Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC’s business assets

* Unique Total Asset Solutions service proposition
Results and Strategy .

In 2017/18, Hitachi Capital Vehicle Solutions generated profit before tax of £24m - this was a slight reduction
on profit from 2016/17 (£25.3m) and reflects significant expenditure, which is not all capitalised, made over the
past year in IT infrastructure to position the business for future growth.

Hitachi Capital Vehicle Solutions has grown significantly over the past 10 years. The annual volume of business
has risen from £100m in 2009 to £370m in 2017/18. The business unit focuses on the long-term contract hire of
vehicles to corporates, including maintenance and breakdown services. It also provides personal leasing and
fleet management services. Hitachi Capital Vehicle Solutions’ strategy is based on offering high levels of
service, tailored to a client’s individual needs, which allows it to retain existing customers and win new
customers. '

Its core services include fleet policy and strategy, engineering services (such as design specification and asset
build), legal asset compliance, cost control and management, and asset utilisation and disposal. Our service is
recognised within the industry, with multiple awards at the Commercial Fleet. Awards 2017, including -
Van/Truck Contract Hire and Leasing Company of the Year, Van/Truck Fleet Management Company of the
Year and Customer Partnership Initiative of the Year.

The business unit operates more than 67,600 assets, valued at £882m, and makes up 20% of Hitachi Capital
(UK) PLC’s business assets. This includes more than 37,400 cars, 26,300 vans and 3,800 HGV and specialist
vehicles. We are one of the 10 largest leasing companies in the UK and uniquely in the market can offer a
comprehensive range of assets, from cars to HGVs and plant machinery.

The past year has seen significant IT investment in Hitachi Capital Vehicle Solutions, creating a new core
platform and a number of customer-facing digital solutions, including our new Connect portal for direct
customers, our new application suite that includes a driver behaviour and vehicle health app, a new online
service booking facility and a new vehicle daily check app for HGVs.

We are unique in our market place in our ability to offer Total Asset Solutions. The proposition extends beyond
cars and vans to cover every kind of mobile asset, including large trucks, plant and machinery. - -
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC

Group Strategic Report (continued)

Divisional Highlights
Hitachi Capital Vehicle Solutions has a number of core propositions:-

Total Asset Solutions: the management of every mobile asset in a customer’s control. This covers the design,
funding, in-life management, Ml and disposal of the asset. The underlying principle of this proposition is to-
increase the operating efficiency of our customers’ fleets.

Car Select: the delivery of a car-based employee benefit for employees of medium and large corporates. This
proposition covers several funding methods and focuses on designing. and running the most effective and
appropriate vehicle benefit for our customers. Service delivery to the employee and continuous improvement are
key to this proposition.

Personal Leasing: a market leading personal lease offering that we market both directly and via a network of
brokers. We base our proposition on the principles of being easy to deal with and competitive pricing and
deliver the customer experience through an online platform that encompasses automated underwriting, online
documentation and e-signature. Our personal leasing fleet covers over 15,000 vehicles.

Business Finance

Highlights

* Asset portfolio grows to £1bn+

* Pre-tax profit up 4.9% to £21.4m

* Market share up

* Launched new HP proposition for SMEs

Results and Strategy :

In 2017/18, Hitachi Capital Business Finance’s portfolio grew to £1bn for the first time. The business unit’s
overall share of the market grew from 1.68% in September 2015 to 2.0% in September 2017. Profit before tax
was £21.4m, a 4.9% rise from 2016/17. Business Finance makes up 21% of Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC’s
business assets.

This year we launched our direct-to-market asset finance and business loan proposition. Our approach offers no
hidden fees and a simple online application process that means we can give customers an instant response. The
proposition includes straightforward repayment options and fast release of funds to a customer’s supplier within
24 hours of receiving all necessary paperwork.

Hitachi Capital Business Finance has proven recognition as a service leader. In the past 12 months, the business
unit has been awarded Best Business Motor Finance Provider at the Business Moneyfacts Awards 2017 and
Leasing & Asset Provider of the Year 2017 by the National Association of Commercial Finance Brokers. Our

- service offering sets us apart from our competitors in the broker channel, as evidenced by the strong customer
outcomes we consistently deliver. Hitachi Capital Business Finance is an accredited member of the Institute of
Customer Servnce and is dedicated to satisfying customers.

As a business, we are committed to funding assets that allow SMEs to grow their business and be more
successful. Around two-thirds (68%) of business comes via brokers, with the remaining third (32%) through
block and vendor/manufacturer relationships.

During 2017/18, we became the first funder to offer the British Business Bank’s Enterprise Finance Guarantee
for Asset Finance. As the Government acts as guarantor for the loans and covers businesses that are just 18
months old, we are able to expand our offering to a wider market and further support the growth of more British
business.
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC

Group Strategic Report (continued)

Divisional Highlights
Invoice Finance

Highlights

* 18% increase in new clients

» Significant reinvestment to ensure future growth

» Focus on people, technology and facilities

 Consolidation of locations

* Development of automated client approval and on-boarding process

Results and Strategy

_Over the past two years, Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC has made an important investment in Hitachi Capltal Invoice
Finance to dramatically transform and prepare the business unit. for future growth. As a result of this investment,

- Hitachi Capital Invoice Finance recorded a loss before tax of £2.1m in 2017/18. The business unit was

_consolidated in May from two sites to one, and is now based in our newly expanded and refurbished, Telford
office. Retention during this period was high, with all clients transferred without loss.

in 2018/ 19 we are due to launch an automated client approval and on- boardmg plocess which has been deSIgned
to reduce significantly the time to set up new clients for funding.

~ Hitachi Capital Invoice Finance generated record new business levels, with the number of new clients up 18%
on the previous year, against the background of a static invoice finance market. Our Inspired Payroll product,
which launched the previous year, recorded a 100% increase in sales. )

Providing excellent customer service is a priority for Hitachi Caplital Invoice Finance. We hold a rating of 4.9
stars for Service and $ stars for Product on independent customer feedback platform, Feefo. A survey of existing
clients, carried -out in December 2017, found that 92% were happy with the service, while 96% would
‘recommend Hitachi Capital Invoice Finance to other businesses. '

We also won Best Service from Invoice Finance Provider and were highly commended for Best Factoring and
Invoice Discounting Provider at the 2018 Business Moneyfacts Awards.

European Vendor Solutions

Highlights

* £242m volume of business in 2017/18

* Active in 13 European countries

« Dedicated European branch in Amsterdam

* European Vendor Solutions created as separate business unit in April 2018.

Results and Strategy

"Since it was established in 2013, European Vendor Solutlons (formerly called Group Business Development)
has grown from a team of three people, writing £10m of business across three countries, to 20 people,
transacting £242m in 13 countries in 2017/18 - more than double the volume of the previous year.

Our main business is providing end to end vendor finance solutions addressing the requirements of

manufacturers and their distribution network through the product lifecycle, mcludmg stocking, demonstrator,
end user and second hand equipment ﬁnance
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC
Group Strategic Réport (continued)

Divisional Highlights

As with all divisions of Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC, customer service is a core focus for European Vendor
Solutions. The team has a high customer satisfaction score, being marked 8 out of 10 as a ‘perfect fit’ finance
solution by our vendors. This is bolstered by our speed of execution, with 96% of proposals approved within the
same day. In September 2017 we opened a branch office in Amsterdam, Netherlands, to strengthen our direct
presence in Europe and increase the capability for cross-border lending into the European market. Reflecting
these ambitions for growth, the European Vendor Solutions team became a separate business unit from April
2018. . : :

European Vendor Solutions’ priorities for 2018/19 are to develop the Netherlands branch as a new base for
European activity, supporting the Hitachi Capital Corporation global common strategy, which focuses on the
needs of Hitachi and Mitsubishi companies and their distribution networks. This will be delivered by expanding
directly in Europe, the Middle East and Africa and through investment in the development of products to meet
the needs of our vendor partners and end users. We will also look to expand our existing indirect programmes
further into Europe, with local delivery through partners supported by strategic steering from the European
Vendor Solutions team. :
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC
Group Strategic Report (continued)

Principal risks & uncertainties

The Group risks are managed within the four categories set out below:

Strategic Risk - The risk that HCUK does not devise and implement a business strategy that is based upon its
Vision, Mission and Values and/or that’is not aligned to the Hitachi Capital Group Medium Term Strategy. '

Financial Risk - The risk that HCUK: does not deliver its busmess plan and profit target WhllSt maintaining the
Group’s bad debt charge and funding withih agreed levels.

Conduct Risk - The risk that HCUK does not behave ethically or deliver fair outcomes for its customers, whilst
operating in accordance with both the letter and spirit of applicable legislation and regulatlon including the
FCA Principles for Busmess :

Operational Risk - The risk that HCUK does not adequately and effectively manage its people, processes and

systems to deliver HCUK’s strategxc objectives. .

With reference to these categories, the principal risks that HCUK considers it currently faces are as follows:

Inherent Strategic Risk

Risk . Mitigants
We are unable to keep pace with market change | « We make significant ongoing investment in the qualnty of
or our products become too costly in our systems and products.
comparison to competltors reducmg our market :
[share. : . . * We regularly review our prices to ensure that they remain

competitive.

» We have a Customer Experience Committee to understand
our customers’ attitudes and the outcomes they receive from
our products.
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC ‘ L

Group Strategic Report (continued)

Principal risks & uncertainties

Inherent Financial Risk

Risk

Mitigants

[We are unable to access funding for the business
or can only access at an unreasonable cost.

» We rely on wholesale markets to fund the creation of new
assets for each underlying business. We raise term funding
using a diversified set of sources - namely; private placement
Medium Term Notes, bi-lateral and syndicated bank
borrowing, securitisation, commercial paper and short term
bank facilities. We raise funds in multiple different
currencies and swap into Sterling. We attract investors from
multiple regions including Japan, mainland Europe, Asia
Pacific and the UK as well as maintaining bank
counterparties from multiple regions.

+ We maintain borrowings that exceed the expected term of
our assets at all times, including during potential run off
scenarios modelled.

» We ensure that we are able to draw on funding sources to
meet forecast new asset creation through frequent regular
planmng

» We ensure new business pricing includes current funding
costs, to maintain an appropriate margin at all times.

[We incur losses through ineffective hedging
[strategies or through counterparty failure.

+ We set a range of treasury risk appetite limits and hedging
strategies which are continually monitored.

* We deploy effective interest rate hedging through derivative]
financial instruments / fixed rate borrowings.

. We manage our effectiveness through regular Treasury
Committee meetings at which the tenor of interest rate
fixings in borrowing costs are matched against the tenor of
the fixed rate income generated by the asset portfolio.
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC

" Group Strategic Report (continued)

_Principal risks & uncertainties }

Risk . Mitigants

We face significant unexpected credit losses, | » We use internal and external data, internaily developed

rrears, increased bad debts and defaults. scorecards and other analytical tools to assess customer
‘ creditworthiness, affordability and debt-service capacity.

- » We focus our lending activities in segments and products
where we have clear and proven expertise. ’

* We limit concentration of lending by size, segment and
customer type.

» Where appropriate, especially in commercial lending, we
obtain appropriate levels of collateral or security cover.

* We maintain detailed lending and credit policies for each
Business Unit.

» We regularly review portfolio performance against risk
appetite.

* We regularly re-grade or re-score customers to re-assess the
) default risk.

- We regularfy review retailers, vendors and other business
_introducers in order to assess and manage contingent
liabilities for Hitachi Capital associated with the relationship.

[We are subject to a greater than expected dfop » We regularly review and re-set residual values in respect of
“lin residual values. ) new leasing quotes and contracts.

» We limit concentration of residual values by manufacturer,
"model, type, and contractual lease maturity.

+ We utilise a variety of disposal routes to optimise
remarketing proceeds. '

» We periodically adjust fixed asset depreciation rates
correctly to reflect and absorb updated assessments of
prospective future values, relative to.the value assumed and
booked at the inception of the lease.
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Group Strategic Report (continued) |

‘Principal risks & uncertainties

Inherent Conduct Risk

- Risk

Mitigants .

We fail to deliver fair outcomes to our
customers )

« In addition to our risk management governance, we monitor
the delivery of fair customer outcomes through a dedicated -
Customer Experience Committee. -

« We conduct root cause analysis for customer complaints.

« We have control testing, assurance and oversight plans
across all three lines of defence to address key conduct risks.
* We have in place a pan-organlsatlon wide programme of
compulsory training.

*-We undertake regf;lar and focussed training of our
customer-facing colleagues.

» We operate a Quality Assurance programme within our
customer facing business areas.

We do not comply with relevant regulation and
rules, including consumer credlt and privacy
regulation

» We employ experienced and skilled regulatory risk
professionals.

« We have processes for review and assessment of new and
emerging rules, regulations and industry best practices.

» We undertake reégular 2nd line risk-based monitoring
reviews.

* We operate a Quality Assurance programme within our .

- business areas.

« We have open and transparent dialogue with our regulators.
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. Group Strategic Report (continued)

Principal risks & uncertainties

Inherent Operational Risk

Risk

"Mitigants

[We are subject to a major systems failure

W

* We have in place real-time system monitoring to detect
performance issues.

» We have in place perimeter firewalls and security: controls.

* We employ a dedicated and suitably skilled IT support

team. :

« We undertake formal change management processes that

" include robust testing.

. We have robust Business Continuity Planning and IT

Disaster Recovery plans in place.

« We undertake regular audits of IT controls. }

We are subject to significant fraud losses
including cybercrime

* We have in place real-time system monitoring to*detect
system compromises.

*We opérate perimeter firewalls and security controls in
place.

» We deploy strict idenfity validation checks.

.+ We deploy dedicated device identification software and

fraud detection rules.

+ We employ dedicated and suitably skilled Information
Security and Financial Crime prevention support teams.

* We have control testing, assurance and oversight plans
across all three lines of defence to address key financial
crime risks. :
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Grdup Strategic Report (continued)

Principal risks & uncertainties

Risk Management Framework

In order to manage the risks we face, including these principal risks and uncertainties, HCUK has a clear risk
management framework, maintained and developed by the Second Line of Defence Risk & Compliance team
led by the Chief Risk Officer, appointed in March 2018. The risk management framework is overseen by the
. Board with certain responsibilities delegated to the Board’s Audit & Risk Committee.

Key elements of that framework include:

Risk Governance - A clear model for efféctive Board and Executive level governance of the reporting,
. escalation and management of risk. Each Ist Line Business Unit and Central Function has a Risk Committee or
equivalent reporting to an Executive Risk Committee (the most senior Executive level risk committee), which in
turn reports to the Board Audit & Risk Committee. Additional oversight of risks takes place at the following 2nd-
Line Committees, which also report to the Executive Risk Committee - for Conduct & Operational Risks: the
Operational Risk and Compliance Committee; for Financial Risks: the Credit Risk Commlttec and Treasury
Committee.

Relevant management information designed to allow for the effective management of risks within their remit is
supplied to the various Committees. A description of the composition and operation of the Board and its
committees can be found within the Corporate Governance section on page 21.

A ‘3 lines of defence model’ providing clear segregation of responsibilities between the st Line of Defence
(Business Units and Central Functions with the primary responsibility for identifying, assessing and mitigating
" risks within their sphere of responsibility and the maintenance of quality); the 2nd Line of Defence (whose
primary responsibility is the development and maintenance of the Risk Management Framework and the
provision of oversight, advice and challenge to 1st Line areas); and the 3rd Line of Defence (Internal Audit,
which is tasked with providing assurance to the Board on the overall effectiveness of the Ist and 2nd Lines of
Defence and the overall robustness of internal controls throughout the organisation).

Risk Culture, Awareness and Training - A range of mechanisms are in place to promote and reinforce the
importance of risk management and the maintenance of high quality customer outcomes throughout HCUK.

Policy Framework - A clear set of policy statements, standards and supporting processes'and procedures to
articulate to staff and other stakeholders how-we manage risks across our.risk categories.

Risk Appetite Framework - Formalised quantitative and qualitative statements and measures approved by the
Board designed to articulate the risks that HCUK will and will not accept in achieving its strategy.

Risk Categories - A library defining the hierarchy from high level categories down to more granular risk types
that HCUK is exposed to.

Risk Processes - Processes designed to document and manage key risks that may arise using consistent risk
assessment and evaluation techniques including Incident Management Protocols and Disaster Recovery and
Business Continuity Plans.

Assurance and Oversight Plans - Each 1st Line of Defence Business Unit and Central Function undertakes

various control and assurance activity. The Risk & Compliance team (2nd Line of Defence) has a Board Audit

& Risk Committee approved Compliance Monitoring and Risk Oversight Plan. The Internal Audit function (3rd
. Line of Defence) has a Board Audit & Risk Committee approved Assurance Plan.

'
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy derives from and complements the
wider efforts currently being undertaken by our parent company; Hitachi Capital Corporation. At an
international level, Hitachi Capital has set up a CSR Promotion Commrttee to lead the implementation of a
consistent framework for CSR across the Hitachi Capital Group.

Our corporate culture is built on our values of sincerity, harmony and pioneering spirit. The Board considers that
social responsibility is core to our vision of bringing the trusted brand of financial servnces in the UK and
Europe and to our mission, of exceptional people providing outstanding customer experiences today.

Customers

Over one million customers now rely on us every day to provide suitable financial solutions to realise their
ambitions. Delivering fair outcomes for customers is central to what we do. Our corporate strategy reflects the
demands and requirements of the broad customer base held across our five divisions. It is shaped by listening to
what our customers tell us, analysis of trends, and the actions we take to implement improvements.

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are in place to monitor performance in each department that has direct
contact with our customers. Our KPIs monitor a range of areas including the type of.issues raised, speed of
query resolution; loan application acceptances, declines and referrals by channel; comments and queries via
social media channels and Feefo/Touchpoint, to monitor and respond to all feedback. In the June 2017 ICS UK
Customer Satisfaction Index, based on a survey of 10,000 customers, we scored 94 points (out of 100), putting
us well above the UK national average of 78. 2- underlining the 1mportance the business p]aces on delivering .
excellent customer service. .

Representatives from each of the business units which serve consumers meet regularly in our Customer
Experience Committee, to discuss any issues and share best practice around the business to ensure we’re treating
our customers fairly and consistently across the Group.

Employees

With over 1,200 employees we are commltted to investing in our people and rewarding their passion and
enthusiasm: It is our exceptional people who provide outstanding customer experiences, enabling us to record
strong financial performance throughout the year. We have a culture of openness, listening and responding to
the views of our employees. During the year, we instigated employee pulse surveys to measure engagement
across the Company. A survey of all employees undertaken during the year showed that 89% would recommend
Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC as a great place to work, a result that we are immensely proud of. Additional pulse
surveys are issued to new employees on completion of 3 months and 6 months service to measure their
engagement ‘and enable us to better support their integration into the Company. Underpinning our people
strategy is the commitment to ensuring that our compensation and benefit packages continue to remain
competitive relative to market and that we provide all our employees with an inclusive working environment
‘conducive to them achieving their maximum potential.

At Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC, we operate an équal opportunities policy and oppose all forms of unlawful
discrimination on the grounds of sex, marriage or civil partnership, sexual orientation, disability, race, religion
or belief, age, gender reassignment, or pregnancy or matemity In April 2018, we reported a mean gender pay
gap in hourly pay of 33.5% and a median gender pay gap in hourly pay of 34.1% which reflected the underlying
workforce demographics of our Company. Whilst these gaps are broadly in line with the financial services
. industry overall, we are committed to working towards addressing our gender pay gap and are already taking
proactive steps in this regard. These include the review of our recruitment practices to ensure we have a -
diversified shortlist for all senior level positions, the expansion of our Mentoring Circles Programme and an
active industry role in_promoting the profile of women in business. Our full Gender Pay Gap report is available
to read on our website: https://www.hitachicapital.co.uk/media/1576/gender-pay-gap-report-2017.pdf.
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‘Corporate Social Responsibility

‘ Communiiy

We are committed to conducting business ethically and to ensuring that the risk of slavery and human
trafficking taking place within our business or our supply chain is mitigated. The Groups statutory statement
under the Modern Slavery Act is published on our website.

Our aim is to be a good corporate citizen and play a full and active role in our various local communities, make
contributions to a range of charitable organisations, and work towards mutual benefit from our business success.
We also encourage employees to maximise their potential and help others along the way. During the period we
donated well over £200,000 to charity via matched funding and corporate donations. Staff are allowed one day a .
year to volunteer for a charitable cause, and this is actively encouraged by the business at each of its sites.

~ Environment -
- Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC’s environmental policies are centred on a commitment to reducing energy

consumption, preventing pollution and promoting awareness amongst our employees, and ensuring compliance
with compulsory environmental laws, such as [SO 14001 standards

We aim to ensure that Hitachi Capltal (UK).PLC is at the forefront of improving environmental practices. We
are already helping to deliver a lasting impact on our environment, by reducing the carbon footprint across our
premises by 25% over the last four years, further demonstrating our commitment to local communities.

We continue to pioneer new technologies for mobility with our maJor vehicle fleet customers to help them
navigate through rapidly changing technology

These policies provide the opportunity to take bolder steps; improving reporting on CO2 emissions and finding
ways to become a more environmentally- friendly company in the future.

By order of the Board.

Chief Executive Officer
28 June 2018
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Corporate Governance statement

The Board remains committed to high standards of corporate governance. Although the Company is not subject
to the UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”) published by the Financial Reporting Council, the Board
takes into account the principles and provisions of the Code to the extent that the Board considers them to be
proportionate and relevant to the Company, bearing in mind the size and complexity of the Company and the
nature of the risks and challenges it faces.

This corporate governance statement describes: the current position of the Company’s corporate governance
structure and the main features of its internal control and r1sk management systems in relation to the financial
reporting process. '

The Company continues to review and refine its corporate governance structure as it works towards
implementation of the FCA’s Senior Managers & Certification Reglme which will become applicable to the
Company in 2019.

Board of Directors. ' '

The Board is chaired by Guy Munnoch (defined as the “Director in the Chalr” under the Company’s Articles of
Association) and comprises the Deputy Chair.and Senior Independent Director, Alan Hughes, the Chief
Executive Officer, Robert Gordon, and three other non-executive directors, Anne Whitaker, Yoshikazu Ohash1
and leoyukl Fukuro.

Mr. Ohashi and Mr.Fukuro hold executive positions with the Company’s sole shareholder, Hitachi Capital
_Corporation. Excluding the Director in the Chair, the Board therefore has two non-executive directors, Ms.
Whitaker and Mr. Hughes, who are determined by the Board to be independent.

The Board has an oversight role, delegating day to day responsibility for managing the Group’s business to the
Executive Committee (described below) and holding the Chief Executive Officer to account.

. Board Commiittees :

The Board delegates certain deﬁncd responsibilities to committees which are summarised below.
Executive Committee A
The Executive Committee is responsible for leading the day to day management of the Group. It provides the
forum for the executive team to shape and agree the vision, mission, strategy and values, in alignment with those
of the sharehélder, for recommendation to the Board for approval. The committee, through the Chief Executive
Officer, is then accountable to the Board for dellvermg the approved vision, mission and strategy in line with the
Group s agreed values. .

Audit and Risk Commlttee :

The Audit and Risk Committee is chaired by Anne Whitaker, who is a Chartered Accountant and a former audit
partner at Emst & Young. Ms. Whitaker was appointed as chair of the committee by the Board, which considers
her to be independent and to have competence in both accounting and auditing as required by the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules. ‘

The other members of thé committee are Alan Hughes, Guy Munnoch and Hiroyuki Fukuro. Although Mr.
Munnoch is the Director in the Chair, taking into account the size of the Company, his experience in the
-regulated financial services sector and the fact that the Board considers that he was independent on appointment
and continues to be independent, the Board believes it to be appropriate that Mr. Munnoch is @ member of the
Audit and Risk Commlttee
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Corporate Governance statement
(continued)

The Board therefore also considers that a majority of members of the committee are independent and that the
committee as a whole has competence relevant to the sector in which it is operating.

The Board ensures that the committee carries out the functions required by rule 7.1.3 of the Disclosure and

Transparency Rules. .
J . . .
The committee normally meets immediately before each Board meeting, including on key dates in the financial
reporting and audit cycle, and otherwise as necessary. The statutory auditor attends meetings by invitation in
order to ensure that all the information required by the committee is available for it to operate effectively.
Executive directors and the heads of relevant Group functions, such as the Chief Risk Officer and the Head of
Internal Audit, also attend meetings at the invitation of the committee. The committee meets separately with the
statutory auditor at least once per year.

The committee’s responsibilities are set out in its terms of reference, which include monitoring the financial
reporting process and the statutory audit of the annual consolidated financial statements, and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management systems and the work of its internal audit
function. The committee reviews the findings of the Group’s statutory auditor, keeps under review. its
independence. and objectivity, the value for money of the audit, and the appropriateness and cost-effectiveness
of any non-audit services it provides. The committee satisfies itself that any.safeguards requlred by ethical
guidance regarding the provision of non-audit services are 1mplemented

The commiittee reports to the Board on the outcome of the statutory audit and explains how the statutory auditor
and the committee contribute to the process. The committee is responsible for the procedure for selecting the
statutory auditor and for making recommendations on its appointment.

The committee also receives regular updatcs on the implémcntation of, and compliance with, certain aspects of
Japan’s Financial Instruments and Exchange Law (J-SOX) in order, for example, to assure itself that the Group
continues to satisfy its parent company that it remains compliant with the legislation.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Alan Hughes. Its other members are Guy Munnoch, Yoshikazu
Ohashi and Anne Whitaker. The role of the committee includes agreeing the policy for remuneration of the
executive management and approving their individual remuneration packages, ensuring that appropriate
incentives exist at all levels and overseeing any major changes in employee benefit structures across the Group.
The committee also reviews, for approval by the Board and the shareholder, the design of long term incentive
- plans, bonus schemes and commission schemes operated by the Group. In carrying out its duties, the committee
consults other committees of the Board, and the shareholder, as appropriate, and obtains professional advice to
the extent it considers necessary.

Nomination Commlttee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Guy Munnoch, its other members bemg Robert Gordon, Alan Hughes,
Yoshikazu Ohashi and Anne Whitaker. The purpose of the committee is to review regularly the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board and make
recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes, as well as to ensure that there is a formal, rigorous
and transparent procedure for the appointment of new directors. The committee makes recommendations to the
Board on various matters, including succession plans, re-appointment of directors and membership of
committees. In carrying out its duties, the committee consults other committees of the Board, and the
shareholder, as appropriate, and obtains professional advice to the extent it considers necessary.
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Disclosure Committee

Having consulted the Company’s parent company (Hitachi Capital Corporation) and the trustees of the Group’s
pension scheme, the Board resolved that this commnttee was redundant and it was disbanded durmg the year
ended 31 March 2018

Internal Control and RISI( Management

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and risk management and for reviewing its
effectiveness. In relation to the financial reporting process, the system of internal control and risk management
includes controls designed to safeguard assets against unauthorised use, to maintain proper accounting records
and to ensure the reliability of financial information. The system of internal- control and risk management is
designed to manage, but not eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only
reasonable rather ‘than absolute assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Board confirms that there is an appropriate 6ngoir1g process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
. significant risks faced by the Group which has been in place throughout the year ended 31 March 2018 and up
to the date of approval by the Board of the annual report and financial statements.

The key elements of the internal control system include, a clearly defined Board and Board committee structure,
with terms of reference setting out membership, roles and responsibilities. Detailed annual budgets aligned with
the corporate strategy are reviewed and approved by the Board. Regular progress reports and results are
reviewed by the Board or one of its committees and actions are taken as appropriate. Organisational structures
are in place which allow clear delegation of authorities and responsrbllmes throughout the Group

Systems and procedures are in placeA to identify, control and report on the major risks facing the Group. The
Audit and Risk Committee, supported by the Executive Risk Committee, is responsible for coordinating this
process and for making recommendations to the Board. Further information about the Group’s risk management
‘framework is set out in the Group Strategic Report under the ‘heading Principal Risks and Uncertainties on page
13.

The Group has an Internal Audit Function, which has strengthened during the year, thereby enhancing its ability
to provide assurance in respect of the overall effectiveness of the governance of the Group, including the risk
and control framework. In addition, there are regular reviews of key areas of risk by the internal audit teams of
Hitachi Capital Corporation and Hitachi Limited respectively.

The Board, through the Audit and Risk Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal
control, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management through representations
from management and the independent monitoring -undertaken by the internal audit function. In addition, the
Group’s statutory auditor presents to the Audit and Risk Committee reports that include details of any
significant internal control matters which it has identified. Weaknesses identified during the course of these
reviews have been incorporated into action plans. None of the weaknesses have given rise to material loss,
contingency or uncertainty requiring disclosure in the annual accounts.

Throughout the year errded 31 March 2018, the Group complied with the J-SOX legislation to the extent it is
relevant to the Group, as a subsidiary of its parent, using the COSO framework as a consequence of Hitachi
Limited being listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange

B%‘é E .

J.N.M.Sims
Company Secretary
28 June 2018
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Directors' Report

. The Board of Directors present their annual report and audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
"2018 for Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC (rcglstered company number 1630491). - :

Results and Dividends N

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 40. No interim dividend was paid during the year (2017: £nil). The directors are proposing a final dividend
of approximately 6.8p (2017: nil) per share totalling £30.0m (2017: £nil). This dividend has not been accrued in
the statement of financial posmon Further details regarding the dividend are set out in note 20 to the financial
statements. .

Share capital
The Group’s issued share capital together w1th the movement during the year is detailed in note 19 of the
financial statements.

Outlook
. The Group’s future outlook is detailed in the Group Strategic Report on pages 4 to 20.

Employees :

The Board is conscious that the Group’s ability to succeed is driven by the need to attract, develop and retain
suitable employees. Our employee relations policy is designed to encourage an atmosphere of trust and harmony
across the organisation and the Group is committed to the personal development of its employees.

The Group is committed to regular and timely communication to staff of information on matters of concern to

_them as employees, including both briefings and written communications. The Group has an intranet site which
acts as the main reference point in the provision of a'wide variety of information to employees. The CEO holds
regular ‘town hall’ meetings across the various sites, which are frequently filmed and featured on the intranet for
ease of access to the employee community, arid regular team and one to one meetings are encouraged.

During the year, the Group has maintained, the arrangements aimed at ensuring that employees’ views can be
taken-into account in making decisions which are likely to affect their interests. During the year, the Group "
instigated employee ‘pulse’ surveys to measure engagement across the Group. Analysis is available after each
survey and is shared with the Executive Committee and the Board. More information on employee surveys is
provided in the Corporate Social Responsibility section of the Group Strategic Report-on page 19. Employee
representatives are elected as and when necessary to meet the Group’s consultation requu'ements

The Group operates an annual bonus scheme for all levels of staff where a large proportion of bonus potential is
based on the Group and individual business unit financial performance thereby encouraging the involvement of
all employees in the Group’s performance. Regular updates on performance ensure that all employees are aware
of the financial and economic factors affecting the Group.

The Group operates an equal opportunities policy‘ and opposes all forms of unlawful discrimination. The
Group’s selection criteria and procedures will ensure. that individuals are assessed on their skills, attributes,
experience and potential, in order to enable all employees to have equal opportumty to progress within the
Group.

The Group’s policy and practice is that neither disability nor any of the other eight protected characteristics will

form the basis of employment decisions, and the Group will make reasonable adjustments to its standard
- working practice to overcome barriers to recruitment, training, career development and promotion caused by

disability. This includes retraining employees who become disabled whilst in the employment of the Group.
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Directors' Report
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Directors of the Group N

The directors who served during the year and to the date of this report were as follows:

* H. Fukuro

R. Gordon

A. Hughes . _ ]

G. Munnoch ) ’ ' \
Y. Ohashi - : :
A. Whitaker

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, each of the directors serving at the date of this report
will retire by rotation at the 2018 AGM and, being eligible to be re-appointed, will offer themselves for
re-appointment at that meeting.

Disclosure of information to the audltor

The directors who were members of the Board at the time of approving the Director's Report are listed above.

Having made enquiries of fellow Directors and of the Group’s auditor, each of these directors confirms that:

* to the best of each director’s knowledge and belief, there is no.information relevant to the preparatlon of their
report of which the Group’s-auditor is unaware; and

+ each director has taken all the steps a director might reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of
_relevant audit information and to establish that the Group’s auditor is aware of that information.
Statement of Directors' responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and Company financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulatlons . .

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law, they -
are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and applicable- law and.have elected to prepare the parent company
financial statements on the same basis. Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they ‘are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company for that year. In preparing these ﬁnanCIal
statements the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies in accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 8: Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and then apply them consistently;

« present information, including accounting pollc1es in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information;

» provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements of IFRSs is insufficient to
enable users to understand the 1mpact of particular transactions, other events and condmons on the financial
performance; and

« state that the Group and Company have complied with IFRSs, subject to any material departures dlsclosed and
explained in the financial statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group and Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the-assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Directors' Report
_ (continued).

Under applicable law and regﬁlations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a Stra;cgic Report,
Directors’ Report, and Corporate Governance Statement that comply with that law and those regulations.

Directors’ liabilities

By virtue of Article 85 of the Articles of Association of the Company, quahfymg mdemmty provision (within
the meaning given by sections 234 and 235 of the Companies Act 2006) is in force at the date of this report in
respect of each director of the Company (and each director of its subsidiaries) and was in force throughout the
year ended 31 March 2018 in respect of each person who was a director of thc Company (or one of its
sub51d|ar1es) at any time during that year.

Going concern
The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance -
and position are set out in the Group Strategic Report starting on page 4 . The financial position of the Group, its
cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities are described in the Group Strategic Report, the financial
statements and the related noteés starting on page 40. In addition, the notes to the financial statements include the
Group:s objectives, policies and processes for-managing its capital, its financial risk management objectives,
details of its financial instruments and hedging actlvmes and its exposures to price rlsk credit risk, liquidity
risk and cash flow risk.

As part of the directors’ ongoing assessment of going concern, they have considered the budget forecasts for the
Group as well as cash flow projections for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial
statements. The Group has strong long term prospects and has access to considerable financial resources. The
Directors expect that the. Group will continue to grow its assets and increase profitability in its chosen financial
markets in the coming year. As a consequence, the directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its
business risks successfully desplte the current uncertain economic outlook

The directors are satisfied that appropriate facilities are currently, and will continue to be, ‘available for the
foreseeable future. A central treasury function provides finance for the Group’s operations and manages treasury
risks in accordance with policies approved by the Board and the Treasury Committee. The Group has access to,
and capacity in, existing funding programmes. These programmes include:

* Euro medlum term note and commercnal paper programmes for which Hitachi Capital Corporation acts as
guarantor.

« Securitisation facnmes which management renegotiates at each maturlty date. )

« Group loan facilities available from the Hitachi Capital Corporation and bank borrowings.

It is the directors’ intention to continye to utilise existing facilities and seek additional funding as required to
meet the funding needs of the business. Liquidity risk and funding management issues are covered in more
detail within note 28 to the financial statements.

The directors-have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the annual financial statements. .

Financial instruments

The Group uses financial instruments to mitigate risk. These are detailed above and in note to the financial
statements.
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Branches _ o -
Details of the Company’s branches are set out in the Group Strategic Report starting on page 4.

Auditors .
In accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst &
Young LLP as statutory auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Corporate Governance Statement

The corporate governance statement is on pages 21 to 23 of this annual report. It includes a description of the
main features of the Group’s internal control and risk management systems in relation to the financial reporting
process. :

By order of the Board.

J.N.M. Sims
Company Secretary
28 June 2018
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Independent Auditor's Report
for the Year Ended 31 March 2018

Opinion
In our opinion:
» Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC’s group financial statements and parent company financial statements (the
“financial statements™) give a true and fair view of the state of the group s and of the parent company ’s affairs

as at 31 March 2018 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended;

» the group ﬁna.ncxal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union; :

» the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and .

P the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,
and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements of Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC which comprise:

Group .. . : : Parent company

Consolidated statement of ﬁnanmal position as at 31
March 2018 .

Consolidated income statement for the year then ended Statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for,

the year then ended Statement of cash flows for the year then ended

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the yearRelated notes 1 to 29 to the financial statements.
then ended including a summary of significant accounting policies

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended

Related notes 1 to 29 to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies
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.Independent Auditor's Report
for the Year Ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and; as regards to the parent company
financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report below. We are independent of the group and parent
company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements_in
the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical respons1b|ht1es in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evudence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. .

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:

«-the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparatnon of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or - .

« the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issue. :

Overview of our audit approach

. « Estimation of Consumer Credit Act (CCA) compliance pro{/isions in the
* Key audit matters Consumer Finance business segment

+ Impairment of loans and recelvables in the Consumer Finance busmess
segment

» Determination of residual values (RV) of leased assets in the Vehicle Solutions
business segment

+ Hedge accounting adjustments. for micro fair value cross-currency hedges -

* Revenue recognition from loss pool contracts in the Consumer Finance
business segment

* We performed an audit of the complete financial information of Hitachi
Capital (UK) PLC as at 31 March 2018. Thé group had one dormant subsidiary
. (component), and one subsidiary (component) which was sold during the year.
Audit scope - Both components were immaterial to the group and accounted for 0.6% of profit
before tax and 1.6% of revenue, therefore only limited audit procedures were

performed in relation to the components. ‘ .

Materiality

* Overall group materiality of £5.8m which represents 5% of profit before tax.
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Key audit-matters

Key audit matters are those matters-that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the
greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit, and directing the efforts of
the engagemént team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Risk

v

Our response to the risk

Key observations communicated
to the Audit Committee

Estimation of CCA compliance
provisions in the Consumer Finance
business segment

£18.9 million (2017: £17.2 million)
(provisions for customer claims)

Refer to

Accounting

policies (page 69); and Note 21
of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (pages 99-100)

CCA compliance provisions reflect
the directors’ estimates of the
expected costs to be incurred as a
result of customer claims connected
to failed retailers, or compersation
to customers for non-compliance
with the Consumer Credit Act. They)|
are based on relevant assumptions
related to the circumstances of each
scenario. Consequently, there is a .
significant level of subjectivity and
uncertainty associated with these
estimates. .

We gained an understanding of the
key controls in respect of the
process for determining CCA
compliance provisions in the
Consumer Finance business
segment.

We examined the models used by
the directors to determine a best
estimate of likely costs in relation to
CCA compliance claims. This
included assessing the
appropriateness of assumptions
applied, including the probability of
failure and likely exposure in the
event of failure for those retailers
deemed to be at risk.

In evaluating the directors’
assumptions, we performed an
analysis of the company’s historical
loss experience and the accuracy of
previous estimates compared to
actual losses. We also tested a
sample of provisions designated as
utilised to validate that these
exclude reversals of provisions, and
only included settlement of claims.

We traced the data inputs to the
provision models to supporting
documentation and source systems,
and checked the clerical accuracy of
provision calculation models.

As it related to broader conduct risk
and cases of customer.redress, we
involved EY conduct risk specialists
to assess the reasonableness of the
directors’ methodology and
assumptions used in the calculation

of amounts due to customers.

We communicated to the Audit and
Risk Committee that provisions for
CCA compliance were reasonably
estimated. :

We also concluded that the
disclosures presented were in
compliance with IFRS, and describe
the uncertainties and risks
associated with determining the
provisions and the sensitivity of the |-
provisions to changes in key
assumptions.

We assessed the calculations and
related judgements, including
assessing claim rates and costs as
compared to historical trends, for a
sample of retailers and provisions,
and did not identify any material
differences to the provisions
determined by the directors.
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[mpairment of loans and
receivables in the
Consumer Finance business
segment '

£14.2 million (2017: £16.9 million)
(bad debt impairment charge in
Consgmer Finance)

Refer to

. Accounting

policies (pages 56-57); and Notes 4
and 11

of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (pages 70-72, 84-90)

Impairment of loans and
receivables is subjective and

reliant on various indicators of
customers’ ability to repay,
including external credit risk ratings
and statistical models.

Consumer Finance receivables are
unsecured, and impairment losses °
can be material in aggregate.
Judgement is required in
determining probabilities of default,
and therefore this is a key audit
matter.

.| portfolio data used in these

‘in the business.

We tested controls over impairment
calculations and the generation of

calculations. We determined that we
could place reliance on these
controls for the purposes of our
audit. :

We tested the impairment provision
model by examining the logic of the
model calculations, the accuracy of
data inputs and the appropriateness

of key assumptions and loan ratings
used in the model.

We evaluated changes made to
calculation methodologies and
assessed whether those changes
were in line with generally accepted
accounting principles and were
reasonable as a response to changes

We evaluated the completeness of
exposures assessed for impairment
by the directors. We performed
analytical procedures to establish
directional consistency between
provisions and credit quality of the

exposures. .

We communicated to the Audit and
Risk Committee that the
impairment models, calculations
and assumptions employed were
reasonable as at 31 March 2018 and
that these resulted in impairment
provision that were materially
correct. We also concluded that the
disclosures presented were in '
compliance with IFRSs.

We assessed and challenged the
calculations and judgements with
reference to historical experience
and testing of the underlying
data,and did not identify any
material differences to the
provisions determined by the
directors.
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Determination of residual values
(RV) of leased assets in the Vehicle
Solutions business segment

£152.9 million (2017: £145 million)
(depreciation and impairment of
operating leased assets in Vehicle
Solutions) i

Refer to the

Accounting

| policies (page 54); and Notes 4 and
9 .

of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (pages 70-72, 79-81)

Operating lease residual value
estimates impact depreciation rates
applied and take into account
factors affecting valuations such as
wear and tear and reducing market
prices for second hand cars. Any
estimates are the result of various
assumptions, require judgement,
and can vary from period to period.

We tested key controls operating in
relation to the determination of -
residual values of leased assets. We
determined that we could place
reliance on these controls for the
purposes of our audit.

We examined the logic of the model
calculations, the accuracy of data
inputs, including the consideration
of externally available prices, and
the appropriateness of key .
assumptions used in the model. We
tested the adjustments and )
assumptions made by the directors
in determining the useful life and
rate of depreciation of the leased
assets over their useful life.

We involved in-house valuation
specialists to gain comfort over the
methodology applied and to
challenge the assumptions applied to
the valuations.

In evaluating the directors’
assumptions, we performed back
testing of assumptions and validated
profits/losses made on sales to
assess the accuracy of past
assessments.

We communicated to the Audit and
Risk Committee that the residual
values calculated in respect of
operating leased assets in the
Vehicle Solutions business segment
were reasonable as at'31 March
2018, and that related adjustments
to depreciation were recorded in
line with IFRS.

We challenged the assumptions
applied by-the directors,
communicated that the assumptions
made by the directors were
reasonable in the context of the
leased portfolio and current market
values.
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Hedge accounting adjustments for
micro fair value cross currency
hedges

£11.6 million (2017: £0.8 million)
(cross currency swap contracts)

Refer to

Accounting .
policies (pages 58-60); and Note 13
of the Conisolidated Financial
Statements (pages 91-92)

The valuation of financial
instruments and designation of
hedge relationships is inherently
complex. The inherent complexity -
involved in the valuation of
liabilities hedged by cross currency
swaps, and also incorrect valuation
of these swaps, could materially
impact recorded hedge
ineffectiveness, if incorrect.

We tested controls over the
valuation of cross currency
derivatives and fair value hedge
accounting. We determined that we
could place reliance on these
controls for the purposes of our
audit. ‘ :

To test the valuation of cross
currency swaps, we involved
in-house valuation specialists to
assist in assessing the directors’

-valuation methodology and to

perform an independent valuation of]
a sample of derivatives and related
hedged items.

We also tested the inputs to the
hedge effectiveness testing, and the
process for the determination of
hedge effectiveness, and assessed
the appropriateness of conclusions
including recorded ineffectiveness.
We involved in-house hedge
accounting specialists to re-perform
tests of hedge effectiveness for a
sample of positions.

We communicated to the Audit and
Risk Committee that the valuation
of cross currency derivatives and
recording of hedge accounting was.
reasonable as at 31 Maich 2018.

We concluded that the hedge
documentation requirements under
IAS 39 were met, and that hedge
relationships tested were found to
be effective.
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Revenue recognition from loss pool
contracts in the Consumer Finance
business segment

£86.3 million (2017:
£84.9 million) (interest income in
Consumer Finance); £65.9 million
(2017: £62.8 million) (retailer
liability)

Refer-to

Accounting

policies (pages 50, 58); and Notes 4
and 25

of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (pages 70-72,108)

Contracts with retailers contain
bespoke terms that govern the levels
of revenue earned by the company,
and amounts collected from
customers but due to retailers if they
are not absorbed by subsequent
losses (Retailer Liability). These
contracts require manual inputs to
systems and accounting
reconciliations, which increases the
risk of fraud or error.

As these contracts affect the group’s
revenue, we determined this risk to
be a key audit matter.

We tested the key controls over
setting up of loss pool contracts, the
recording of retailer liabilities, and
the recognition of income on these
deferred amounts. We determined
that we could place reliance on these
controls for the purposes of our
audit.

We tested a sample of transactions
to verify that loss pool rates have
been properly set up within the
source system and were recorded in
line with contracts with retailers.

We also tested a sample of
agreements where income had been
recognised to assess whether write
offs and recoveries were
appropriate.

For loss pool pay outs, we agreed
the amounts paid to the retailers to
the underlying agreemerits and bank
statements.

We communicated to the Audit and
Risk Committee that the retailer.
liability / loss pool balance is fairly
stated as at 31 March 2018 and that
related revenue has been
appropriately recorded.

We also communicated that we
challenged the calculation
methodology, considering
provisions for loan losses across
loss-pooled and non loss-pooled
agreements, including challenging
where different approaches were
applied, and noted no material
impact on the provision balance.
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An overview of the scope of our audit

Tailoring the scope :
Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of performance materiality
determine our audit scope for each entity within the group. Taken together, this enables us to form an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We take into account size, risk profile, the organisation of the group and
effectiveness of group wide controls, changes in the business environment and other factors such as recent
Internal audit results when assessing the level of work to be performed. All work was performed by the UK
audit team, who performed an audit of the complete financial information for the Group, w1th llmlted
procedures performed on immaterial components.

. Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audnt in evaluating the effect of 1dent1ﬁed
mlsstatements on the audit and in forming our audit opinion.

Materiality '

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be
expéected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements. Materiality provides a
" basis for determining the nature and extent of our audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the group and parent company to be £5.8 million (2017: £5.9 million), which is
5% of profit before tax. We believe that profit before tax provides us with the most appropriate basis for
calculating materiality as HCUK is a profitable entity and the decisions of the users of the financial statements is
most affected by profitability of the group.

Performance materiality

The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level. lt is set at an amount to reduce to an
appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds
materiality.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the group’s overall control environment,
our judgement was that performance materiality was 75% (2017: 75%) of our planning materiality, namely £4.4
million (2017: £4.4 million). We have set performance materiality at this percentage due to the strength of the
control environment and a lower expectation of material misstatements in the financial statements.

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as belng clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Audit and Risk Committee that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in
excess of £0.3 million (2017: £0.3 million), which is set at 5% of planning materiality, as well as differences
below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.
We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed
above and in light of other relevant qualitative considerations in forming our opinion.
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. Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 1-27, other than
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other mformatlon and, except to the extent otherwnse
explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statemerits, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so,.consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If'we identify such material
.inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

« the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception -

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the
directors’ report. -

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relatnon to Wthh the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: :

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

* the parent company financial statements to be audited.are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

* certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made or

* we have not recelved all the information and explanatlons we require for our audit.

Responsnbllltles of directors

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities set out on pages 25-26, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, dnd for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group and parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company
.or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high*level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audlt was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud

The objectives of our audit, in respect to fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks
of material misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate responses; and to
respond appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit. However, the primary
responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the
entity and management.

Our audit approach in respect of irregularities, including fraud, was as follows:

* We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Group and
determined that the most significant were the regulations, licence conditions and supervisory requirements of the
Financial Conduct Authority (‘FCA’ )
* We understood how the group complies with these legal and regulatory frameworks by making enquiries of the
directors, other management, internal audit, and those responsible for legal and compliance matters.” We also
reviewed correspondence between the group and UK regulatory bodies; attended meetings of the Audit and Risk
Committee, reviewed minutes of the Board, Audit and Risk Committee and Operational Risk Committee; and
.gained an understanding of the group’s approach to governance, demonstrated by the Board’s approval of the
group’s governance framework and the Board’s review of the internal control processes.
» We assessed the susceptibility of the group’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how
fraud might occur, by considering the controls that-the group has established to address risks identified by the
entity, or that otherwise ‘seek to prevent, deter or-detect fraud. We also considered performance and incentive
plan targets and their potential to influence the directors or other management to manage eammgs or influence
the perceptions of investors.
* Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify noncompliance w1th such laws and
regulations identified in the paragraphs above. Our procedures involved inquiries of legal counsel, the directors
and other management, internal audit, and focused testing, as referred to in the Key Audit Matters section above.
» The group operates in a regulated environment. As such the Senior Statutory Auditor considered the
experience and expertise of the engagement team to ensure that the team had the appropriate competence and
capabilities, which included the use of specialists where appropriate.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial

Reporting Council’s website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of
our auditor’s report. ‘
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Other matters we are required to address T .

» We were appointed by the company in 2006 to audit the financial statements of the group and parent company
for the year ending 31 March 2007 and subsequent financial periods. Following a competitive tender process,
we were reappointed as auditor for the group and parent company for the year ending 31 March 2018 and
subsequent financial periods. Our total uninterrupted period of engagement is 12 years, covering periods from
our initial appointment through to the year ending 31 March 2018. '

» The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard weré not provided to the group or the parent
company and we remain independent of the group and the parent company in conducting the audit.

* The audit opinion is consistent with our additional report to the Audit and Risk Committee.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in" an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the-company and the
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Cndr L By e
Steven Robb (Senior statutory auditor)
for and. on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

London
28 June 2018 : S

Vs

Notes:

1. The maintenance and integrity of the Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC web site is the responsibility of the directors;
the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the
auditors accept no responsibility for. any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they
were initially presented on the web site. :

’

2. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. o 3

LN
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2018 - . 2017

Note £m ) £m

Revenue _ - 5 624.8 - 608.9
Finance costs ‘ - (51.9) (49.6)
Depreciation and impairment of operating leased assets 9 (160.2) ' (153.1)
Maintenance expense on operating leased vehicles (30.0) - (29.4)
Other cost of sales : ° 6 (132.7) (131.0)
~ Cost of sales . (374.3) (363.1)
Gross profit : ' v | 250.5 245.8
Bad debts impairment charge ' (16.6) (18.1)
Administrative expenses ‘ 7 - (117.8) ’ (119.4)
Operating profit ‘ _ 116.1 108.3
Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments - 13 ! 0.3 . 0.4
Profit before tax ' ' C ‘ 116.4 108.7
Income tax expense _ . ) T '(23.5) (22.8)
Profit after tax . . 92.9 - 859

The notes on pages 48 to 125 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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_ 2018 2017
' " Note £m £m
Profit for the year . : 929 85.9
Other comprehensi\{e income to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent period ]

‘Gain on cash ﬂoﬂ)v hedges taken to cash flow hedge reserve ' i 14.9 3.9 .

Income tax effect : 8 - (2.9) 0.7)

: D o 12.0 3.2

Foreign currency translation gains/(losses) before tax o (0.2) (0.1)
(0.2) (0.1)

Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or

loss in subsequent period . 11.8 3.1

Items that will not be recléssified subsequently to profit or

loss . . :

Re-measurement of defined benefit pension scheme - 24 45 _ (7.2)

Income tax effect - 8 . © (0.9) - 1.4
3.6 (5.8)

- Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or . .

_ loss in subsequent period . , : . 3.6 (5.8)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 154 (2.7
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax ‘ ~108.3 83.2
Attributable to: _

Equity holders of the parent ‘ . 108.3 83.2
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax . 108.3 ' 83.2

N

The notes on pages 48 to 125 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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" Note

N

Non-current assets
“Intangible assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Property, p]ént and equipment under
operating lease

Other property, plant and equipment -

Loans and receivables .
Derivative financial instruments
Deferred tax assets

Retirement benefit asset

Assets

Current assets
Loans and Receivables

- Derivative financial instruments
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
Equity and liabilities

Equity

Share capital -
Share premium
Retained earnings
Other reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the
company

Non-current liabilities

Interest bearing loans and
borrowings :

Derivative financial instruments
Trade and other payables
Provisions

Retirement benefit obligations

11
13

- 24

11
13
16

18

19

14 -

13
25
21
24

Group Group Company Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£fm £m £m £m
25.2 ©17.0 25.2 16.7
S - 1.7 3.0
\
818.3 759.7 818.3 730.4
8.9 13.5 8.9 10.5
2,456.0 T 2,0144 2,456.0 2,009.6
259 60.8 25.9 60.8 .
7.5 8.8 7.5 8.2
3.4 - 3.4 .
3,345.2 2,874.2 3,346.9 2,839.2
1,636.5 1,367.4 1,636.5 1,363.0
18.0 " 100.2 18.0 100.2
20.2 19.7 20.2 18.8
64.7 70.9 64.6 65.4
6.2 2.3 6.2 1.1.
1,745.6 1,560.5 1,745.5 1,548.5
5,090.8 4,434.7 5,092.4 4387.7
110.7 110.7 110.7 110.7
156 15.6 15.6 15.6
465.8 372.9 465.9 371.2
(1.5) '(16.9) (1.5) (17.0)
590.6 482.3 590.7 480.5
" 2,761.6 2,213.2 2,761.6 $2,197.0
494 93 49.4 9.3
75.6 94.7 75.6 94.7
1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4
R 1.3 - 1.3
2,888.0 2,319.9 2,888.0 2,303.7

The notes on pages 48 to 125 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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e}

(continued) . -
Group Group =~ Company Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Note £m £m £m £m
Current Iiabilities .
Bank overdrafts 18 7.2 3.5 72 3.5
Interest bearing loans and : o Co
borrowings : 14 1,392.0 1,419.5 1,392.0 1,390.3
Derivative financial instruments 13 3.3 . 13.4 3.3 13.4
Current tax liability 14.3 18.4 143 - 18.7
Provisions - current 21 " 195 - 18.4 19.5 " 18.4
Trade and other payables 25 175.9 159.3 177.4 159.2
' ' 1,6122 - 1,632.5 1,613.7 1,603.5
Total liabilities o 4,500.2 3,952.4 4,501.7 3,907.2
Total equity and liabilities ‘ 5,090.8 4,434.7 5,0924 -4,387.7

The Company profit for the year was £94.7m (2017: £179.9m)

" The financial statements were approved by the board, authorised for issue on 28 June 2018 and signed on its
behalf by

~ R. Gorffon : . _ _ .
Chief Kxecutive Officer .

The notes on pages 48 to 125 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Group ~ Note
At 31 March 2016

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total éomprehensive income
Issue of share capital .19

(At 31 March 2017

Profit for the year.
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

At 31 March 2018

Share Share Retained Other . Total
capital premium  earnings -  reserves equity
£m £m £m fm: . £m
107 15.6 287.0  (14.2) 299.1
- . 859 - 85.9
- - - 2.7) 2.7)
- - 859 . @n 8.2
100.0 - - - 100.0
110.7 15.6 372.9 " {16.9) 4823
- - 92.9 - 92.9
- - - 15.4 15.4
- - 92.9 15.4 108.3
110.7 15.6 465.8 (1.5)

The notes on pages 48 to 125 form

an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 March 2018

Company {

- At 31 March 2016

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
Issue of share capital

At 31 March 2017
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

. Total comprehensive income

At 31 March 2018

. Other

‘Share Shlare Retained
) capital premium earnings reserves Total
Note £m £m £|p ) £m £m
10.7 *15.6 191.3 (14.3) 203.3
- - 11799 - 179.9
- - - (2.7) .7)
- - 179.9 2.7) 177.2
100.0 - - - 100.0
110.7 15.6 371.2 (17.0) 480.5
- - 94.7 - 94.7
- - - 15.5 15.5
- - 94.7 15.5 110.2
1107 156 465.9 (1.5) 590.7

The notes on pages 48 to 125 form an integfal part of these financial statemerits._
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 March 2018

Proﬁt before tax

Operating activities: _
Non cash adjustment to reconcile
profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and impairment of
property, plant and equipment

* Depreciation and impairment of
intangible assets

Net (gain)/loss on disposal of
operating lease assets
Net loss on disposal of property plant
and equipment . :
Net loss on disposal of intangible

_ ‘assets

Fair value gain on derivative
financial instruments

Net gain on disposal of subsidiary

Defined benefit pension scheme
charge to income statement

Net loss on foreign exchange

Impairment of investment in
subsidiary

Working capital adjustments
Increase in receivables

(Decrease)/increase in payables &
provisions “

Increase in inventories

Cash contributions to defined benefit
pension scheme

Purchase of operating leased assets

Proceeds from sale of operating
leased assets

Cash generated from operations
‘Income taxes paid

Net cash flow from operating
activities

The notes on pages 48 to 125 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

10

13
12

.24

24

Group Grouh Company Company
2018 2017 2018 2017 .
£m £m £m £m
116.4 108.7 118.0 202.6
162.6 156.1 " 1593 151.6
1.6 4.3 1.4 4.3
(7.0) @.1 (4.6) 0.4
0.1 - - .
0.2 - 0.1 .
0.3) 0.4) 0.3) 0.4)
" (0.2) - 2.2) .
0.3 0.5 0.3 0.5
- (1.5) - -
- - - 2.4
273.7 263.6 272.0 361.4
(731.9) (300.6) (719.1) (286.8)
0.3) 24.3 0.1 (26:4)
(1.4) (8.4) (1.4) (8.3)
0.5). 4.7 (0.5) @7
(373.6) (375.9) (365.6) (359.2)
1283 124.0 125.2 118.0
(705.7) 271.7) (689.3) (206.0)
(30.6) (24.7) (29.8) (24.1)
(736.3) (302.4) (719.1) (230.1)

Page 46



Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC

Consolidated Statement of Cash Fldws for the Year Ended 31 M;rch 2018 (continued)

Investing activities ’

Purchase of property, piant and
equipment-(non operating leases)
Proceeds from sale of property plant
and equipment (non operating leases)
Purchase.of, int‘angible assets
Dividends received '

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary

Repayment of capital contribution
from Hitachi Capital Insurance
Europe

Net cash flows from investing
activities

Financing activities

Share Capital issued

Funding received

Funding paid -

Net cash flows from financing
activities' -

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
_bank overdrafts :

‘Cash and bank overdrafts-at
beginning of the year

Cash and bank overdrafts at end of
the year ’
Current assets - cash _
Current liabilities - bank overdrafts

Cash and bank overdrafts at end of
the year

The notes on pages 48 to 125 form an integral part of these financial statements.

_Note

10

12

26

18

18
18
18

Group

Group Company Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£m £m £m £m
(1.3) (4.0) (0.6) (1.6)
- 0.6 . ]
(10.0) (5.2) (10.0) (5.2)
- - - -(96.2)
3.3 - 3.1 -
- - - 0.9
(8.0) (8.6) (7.5) (102.1)
- 100.0 ‘ - 100.0
1,389.7 885.5 1,389.7 868.9
(645.2) (673.1) (661.7) (673.1)
744.5 312.4 728.0 295.8
0.2 1.4 1.4 (36.4)
(1.2) (2.6) (2'.4) 34.0
(1.0) (1.2) (1.0) (2.4)
6.2 2.3 6.2 1.1
(7.2) (3.5) (7.2) (3.5)
(1.0) (1.2) . (1.0) 2.4)
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- : ' o ~ Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018

1 Corporate information .

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 were authorised for.issue
by the directors on 28 June 2018. Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC is a public limited company incorporated in the
United Kingdom. The address of the registered office is given at the beginning of this report as is mformatlon on
the ultlmate parent undertaking. The principal activities of the Group are described in note 4.

2 Accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance

The group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intematlonal Fmancxal Reporting
Standards and their mterpretatlons adopted by the EU ("adopted IFRS's").

2.2 Basis of preparation’

The financial statements have been prepared in.accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards’
(IFRSs), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), as adopted by the European Union,
and applied in accordance with the Companies Act 2006. Under section 408 (3) of the Companies Act 2006 the
Company has not included its own income statement or statement of comprehensive income.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern principle under the historical
cost basis, except for derivative financial instruments which are measured at fair value. The financial statements
are presented in pound sterlmg and all values are rounded to the nearest hundred thousand, except when
otherwise mdlcated :

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as at
31 March 2018. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the -
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent Company, using
consistent accounting policies. All intra Group balances, transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC

Notes to the Fina{ncial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

'

2 Accoﬂnting policies (continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies , '

(2) Business combinations & Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred and included in administrative
expenses. .

7 ‘ N -
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at faif value at the acquisition-
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the
scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised either in profit or loss or as a change to OCL. If the contingent consideration is not within
the scope of IAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the ‘appropriate IFRS. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not re-measured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill on acquisition is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised in the income statement. !

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
.of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition. date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Yéar Ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

1
.

2 Accounting policies (continued)

24 Suinmary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Foreign currency transactions and balances

The presentational currency of the Group and the Company is pound sterling. The functional currency of the-
Company is pound sterling, which is the currency of the primary environment in which the Group operates. The -
functional currency of Hitachi Capital Polska is Polish Zloty which is translated to pound sterling upon

consolidation. The cumulative translation gains or losses arising from this are reported and presented as part of
HCUK Group’s Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”). . -

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on

the dates of the transactions. At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in

foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on-
the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are included in the income

statement for the period.

Non-monetary items that ‘are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated usmg the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e7, translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognised in other comprehensive i income
or profit or loss, respectwely)

Goodwill.arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the spot rate.of exchange at the reporting date. »

In order to hedge its exposure to forelgn exchange I‘lSkS the Group mostly enters into cross currency swaps the
accountmg pohcnes of which are set out in notes 2.4 (k) and 2.4 (1).

(¢) Revenue Recognition

. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic beneﬁts will flow to the- Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or recelvable taking into account contractually defined terms of
_payment and excluding taxes.

Interest Income

Interest and other charges eamed on mstalment finance and other loan agreements are credited to the income
" statement over the life of the agreement using the effective interest rate method such that a constant rate of
return is earned in proportion to the capital balances outstanding. Initial direct costs are recognised over the life
of the agréement, on the same basis as revenues. :
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. ~

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018 (contmued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Lease Income

. Amounts due from lessees under finance lease or hnre purchase agreements are recorded as receivables at the .
amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a'constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Sale of Inventories
Revenue from the sale of mventory is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyer, usually on transfer of the physical goods.

Fee Income and Expenses :
The Group earns fee income and incurs related expenses from a diverse range of services it provides to its
customers. Fee income and expenses can be divided into the following categories:

i.  Fee income from retailers _ : )
These are earned on instalment finance and other loan agreements and they are credited to the income statement
over the life of the agreement using the effective interest rate method such that a constant rate of return is eamed
in proportion to the capital balances outstanding.

R Fee income from customers
These are earned on instalment finance and other loan agreements and they are credited to the income statement
over the life of the agreement using the effective interest rate method such that a constant rate of return is earned
in proportion to the capital balances outstanding.

-

iii. Other income relating to loans, receivables and lease agreements

These are earned on instalment finance and other loan agreements and they are credited to the income statement
over the life of the agreement using the effective interest rate method such that a constant rate of return is earned
in proportion to the capital balances outstanding.

iv. Fee and commission expenses

These are earned on instalment finance and other loan agreements and they are credited to the income statement
over the life of the agreement using the effective interest rate method such that a constant rate of return is earned
in proportion to the capital balances outstanding.

(d) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date, whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset
or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that rlght is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement.
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC

thes to the Financial Statements for the.Ye'ar Ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

24 Sﬁmmary of significant accounting policies (continued)’

Group as a Lessor ) »

Lease and hire purchase agreements are classified as finance leases whenever the terms.of the agreement
transfer substantnally all the risks and benefits of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The initial recognition of a finance lease includes all initial direct costs of the lease and the present value of the
minimum lease payments under the lease terms. Assets leased under operating leases are included in property,
plant and equipment and depreciated over their estimated useful lives. The basis for recognition of finance lease
income and rental income is outlined in 2.4 (c) above.

]

Group as a Lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an admmlstratwe expense in the income statement on a straight line

basis over the lease term.

.
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018A (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Taxe§

-~

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items
recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the income statement.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the llabllxty method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts “for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.” Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available, against which deductible temporary -
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combmatlon) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit. -

The carrying amount of dcferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the -
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantlvely
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transactlon either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset for reporting purposes on the basis that deferred tax

predominantly arises in respect of items taxable within the same jurisdiction (UK) and it is expected that aright
of set-off will exist when the items reverse, in accordance with IAS 12
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

"2 Accounting policies (continued)- . ; . -
24 Summary of signiﬁcaﬁt accounting policies (continued) » i 7

() Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Such cost includes expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition of property and equipment.
. Subsequent cost is included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the cost can be measured reliably.
Maintenance and repairs, which do not meet these criteria, are charged against income as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

* Freehold buildings - 50 years

* Leasehold improvements - Remaining expected term of the lease
« Fixtures, fittings and computer equipment - 4 years

* Motor vehicles - 3 to 6 years '

r

Depreciation of operating leased assets is calculated over the term of the lease on a straight line basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no fiiture economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed by comparing their carrying
value with-their value in use,-at least annually and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Where the Company
has an interest in the residual value of certain operating leased assets, these values are reviewed on a regular
‘basis and, where necessary, any reduction in value is recognised by the Company and charged or credlted to the
mcome statement over the remaining lives of the operating leases of the assets concerned.

(g Investment in subsidiaries _ '

Investments in subsidiaries are initially and subsequently measured at cost. These are assessed for impairment in
line with the accounting policy detailed in note 2.4(}). :
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)
2.4 Summany of significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Acquired intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life (betwéen 2 to 10 years) and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an acquired intangible asset is reviewed at least annually. The amomsatlon
expense on acquired intangible assets is recognised ‘in the income statement. -

An internally generated intangible asset arising from the Group’s software development pl‘OJeCtS is recognised
only if all of the following conditions are met:

* An asset is created that can be identified;

« It is probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefi ts, and,

« The development cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Internally generated software development assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their useful lives,
determined to be four years. The amortisation period and amortisation.method are reviewed at least annually.
Where no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period. At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those’ assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assef is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the Group also tests the -
recoverable amount of intangible assets not yet available for use at least annually.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as administration
expenses.

Any gains or losses arising from the derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between
the net disposal-proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income statement when
the asset is derecognised.

(i) Financial Assets ' ' , ‘ .

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
available for sale financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
. appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All
non-derivative financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs.
Derivative financial assets are recorded at fair value through profit or loss. : -
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Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018 (ccntinued)

2 Accounting policies A(contir‘lued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Loans and Receivables . ) ’

Trade receivables, instalment finance agreements and other loans and advances that have fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted on an active market are classified ds loans and receivables. Loans and receivables
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less impairment. Interest is recognised by
applying the effective .interest rate, except for short term receivables when the recognition of mterest would be
immaterial. - .

Amounts included in the statement of financial position under loans and receivables that represent amounts due
from lessees under finance lease agreements are 1ecognlsed in accordance with the Group s accountmg policy
on leases. .

The effective interest rate method calculates the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocates interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the ﬂnancnal asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter perlod to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets- -

Financial assets other than those at fair value through profit or loss are assessed for.indicators of lmpamnent at
each quarter end. Impairment is recognised when there is -objective evndence that a loss has been incurred in
relation to an exposure.

For finance leases and other commercial loans and advances, the allowance for impairment losses is determined
on an individual basis by reference to past default experience and other recoverability information relating to the
specific loan or other receivable. Management assesses each impairment on a case by case basis where evidence
of impairment exists and .calculations of incurred loss are performed by considering current facts and
circumstances of the exposure. Recoverable amounts are assessed with reference to the expected future cash
flows on the 'loan arrangements, including considering estimates of security value (mtemal or professional
valuation) as well as capacity for payment and timing of recoveries.

Page 56



Hitachi. Capital (UK) PLC

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

For consumer finance agreements, which comprise large numbers of small homogenous assets with similar risk
characteristics, allowance for impairment losses is supplemented by statistical techniques used to calculate
impairment allowance on a portfolio basis. Agreements which are known to be impaired, such as when a
counterparty is declared bankrupt, are fully impaired in the first instance. For all other agreements, where an
indicator of potential impairment exists, such as payment default, the portfolio approach is adopted whereby
historical write off percentages are applied by product, retailer and arrears category. Likelihood of customer
default and losses incurred is estimated regularly and these.estimates are modelled on historical experience,
which factors in past behaviours to determine loss rates. The portfolio is segmented by current payment status
and incurred loss is calculated using the probabilities applied against payment data.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through the allowance account to the extent the carrying amount of the asset at the date of impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortlsed cost would have been had the impairment.not been recognised.

Amounts charged to the allowance account are written off against the carrying amount of the impaired financial
asset when all avenues to recover the asset have been fully utilised and management deems further recovery
remote. '

The Group does not renegotiate the terms of financial assets as a matter of course. However, when the terms of
financial assets that are past due or impaired are renegotlated (by exception only), the income statement is
charged with the write down of the asset to its revised carrymg value, and credited with any previous provision
made against the asset.

(j) Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost or as derivatives designated as hedging

instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
plus directly attributable transaction costs in the case of loans and borrowings.

Interest Bearing Borrowings

Borrowings are normally measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, with interest
expense measured on an effective yield basis. However, where the borrowings are in a fair value hedging -
relationship they are recorded at fair value, net of transaction costs.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate at which estimated
future cash payments are discounted to the net carrying amount of the financial liability over the expected life
(or a shorter period, where appropriate) of the financial liability. The correspondmg interest expense is presented
within Finance cost in the income statement for the period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)

24 Summér»y of significant accounting policies (continued)

Retailer Liability

The retailer liability arises through contractual terms with certain retailers whereby a portion of the cash flows
financed are deferred. and held by the Group to cover possible future losses. These deferred amounts are
therefore recorded as liabilities by the Group, as they remain the property of the retailer-until either losses arise
or each vintage of financing agreements matures. The Vintage refers to a group of agreements incepted in a
given month. As credit losses arise on finance agreements which are subject to these contractual terms, the
associated amount of deferral is released to the extent necessary to cover «credit losses on each finance
agreement and is set off against the associated bad debt charge in accordance with the contractual terms
established with the retailer. As a result credit losses arising from agreements which are subject to these
contractual terms have no effect on ‘the Group's income statement unless the amount of credit loss recorded is
greater than the amount of deferred retailer cash held by the Group. In the event that the retailer liability is not
consumed by losses before the end of the related loan period, the balance is returned to the retailer upon final
maturity of each annual vintage of agreements. Retailer liability is recorded within other liabilities on the
statement of financial position. ' )

(k) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to variation in interest -
and foreign exchange rates including cross currency swaps and interest rate swaps. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Wherever possible the Group designates derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities (fair value hedges) or hedges of foreign currency and, or, interest rate risk of firm commitments and
recognised liabilities (cash flow hedges). The Group may also from time to time employ hedges that do not
satisfy the strict eligibility requirements for hedge accounting contained within 1AS 39 and are, as‘a result, ‘non
designated’ for hedge accounting purposes but which nevertheless make an.effective hedge against a particular
financial risk in accordance with the principles of risk management.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value at the time the derivative contract is entered
into. After initial recognition they are re-measured to their fair value at each reporting date. The resulting gains
or losses are taken to the income statement immediately unless the derivative is within a designated cash flow
hedging relationship, in which event, the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
underlying hedged item.

For derivatives where hedge accounting is not applied, the fair value movement is recorded in the income
statement as fair value movement on derivative financial instruments. Interest accrued on derivatives that are not
part of a hedging relationship is included in fair value gains and losses in the income statement.

"(1) Hedge Accounting

At inception, each hedge relationship is designated as being either:

* A hedge of the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or firm commitment (fair value hedge) or,

« A hedge of a highly probable future cash flow attributable to elther a recognised asset or liability or a forecast
transaction (cash flow hedge). -
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

.

2 Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

A hedging relationship can only be recognised for the purposes of IAS 39 hedge accounting when all of the
following are true:- i
» At the inception of the hedge, there is formal documentation of the hedge;
+ The hedge is expected to be highly effective; '

*+ The effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably measured;
* The hedge is highly effective throughout its life to maturity; and,
* For a hedge of a forecast transaction, the transaction is highly probable and presents an exposure to variations
in cash. ﬂows that will ultlmately affect net profit.

Derivative financial instruments included in hedging relationships are measured at fair value.

Hedge accounting is discontinued if the hedging relationship is no longer effective, as defined by 1AS39, or no
longer meets the hedging and business objectives. Note 13 contains details of the fair values of the derivative
instruments_used for hedging purposes. Movements in the cash flow hedge reserve in equnty are detalled in the
statement of comprehensxve income on page 41 .

Fair Value Hedge
Changes in fair value of derivatives that are in desngnated fair value hedge relationships are recorded in the .
income statement immediately, together with any changes in fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are
attributable to the hedged risk. Gains or losses on the revaluation of both the fair value hedge instrument and the
hedged item are recognised in the income statement as they occur. Fair value adjustments relatmg to the hedging
instrument are allocated to the same income statement category as the related hedged item.

Fair value hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedge
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The brought
forward cumulative adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is, from
the. point of de-designation, then amortised through the income statement account over the remaining life of the
hedged item. .
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

24 -Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Cash Flow Hedge »

The change in the fair value of derivatives in cash flow hedge relationships is in each accounting period split
between that part which. is effective in hedging, that is offsetting, the change in value of the underlying item and -
that part which is deemed to be ineffective. That is, that part of the change in value of derivatives that does not
offset the movement in the underlying hedged item.

_That part of the change in value of a derivative that is deemed. to be ineffective in its designated hedge
relationship is recognised immediately in the profit or loss account line ‘fair value gain/loss on derivative
financial instruments’. Gains .or losses on derivatives that are deemed effective in hedging the underlying risk
are deferred in the cash flow hedge reserve and released to profit or loss in the perlods as and when the
undcrlymg hedged item is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging
instrument expires, is sold, terminated, exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At the point of
de-designation the cumulative gain or loss that had previously been deferred in the cash flow hedge reserve is
charged to the income statement, unless the hedged item is a forecast transaction in which case the deferred gam
or loss is transferred to the income statement as and when the forecast transaction occurs.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Inventories represent assets that have come
.off a lease arrangement pending disposal or have been purchased for lease to customers. Net realisable value
takes into account prevailing market values and cost of sales.

(n) Provisions -

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to any
provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement.

\

(0) Cash and Cash Equivalents .

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of fmancnal position comprise cash at bank and on hand and short
term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For purposes of the coﬁsolidated statement” of cash flows, the Group has included bank overdrafts within cash
and cash equivalents as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

(p) Securitisation Transactions

Where the Group has issued debt securities or entered into funding arrangements with lenders in order to finance
specific loans and advances to customers all the financial assets concerned continue to be held on the Group
statement of financial position, and a liability recogmsed for the proceeds from the funding transaction, unless‘
one of the following applies:
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2 Accounting policies (continuéd)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

* Substantially all of the risks and rewards associated with the financial assets have been transferred, in which
case the assets are derecognised in full;

« The assets are also derecognised in their entirety where a significant portion but not all of the risks and
rewards have been transferred and the transferee has control of the financial assets;

* 'Where a significant portion but not substantially all of the risks and rewards have been transferred and the
transferee does not have control of the assets then the assets are recognised in the Group’s statement of
financial position, but only to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement; and,

*  Where any of the above applies to a fully proportionate share of all, or specifically identified cash flows of
all the assets, then the relevant accounting treatment is applied to that proportion of the identified assets.

(q) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Operating Leased Property, Plant and Equipment

Residual value exposure occurs due to the uncertain nature of the value of an asset at the end of an agreement.
Throughout the life of an asset, its residual value will fluctuate because of the uncertainty of the future market
for that asset as well as general economic conditions. Residual values are set at the commencement of the lease
based upon management’s expectation of future sale proceeds. During>the course of the lease, residual values
are monitored so as to identify any impairment required. The monitoring takes account of the Group’s past
history for residual values and prolectlons of the likely future market for each group of assets. Any 1mpa|rment
in the residual value of each group asset is immediately charged to the income statement.

Other Assets
The Group assesses at least annually whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset, e.g. goodwill, may °
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal and is determined for an individual asset or cash generating unit (“CGU), unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset’is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Thé Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed
budget calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGU’s. These budgets generally
cover a period of four years; for longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and applied to project -
future cash flows after the fourth year. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

‘ -

(r) . Pension Benefits

The Group operates a defined benefit pension scheme and a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension
cost relating to the defined benefit scheme is assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified
actuaries using the projected unit credit method which attributes entitlements to benefits to the current period (to
determine current service cost) and to the current and prior perlods (to determine the present value of defined
benefit obligations).
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised, in full, in the statement of comprehensive income in the periods in
which they arise. The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to the income
statement in the period to which the contributions relate. ’

The defined benefit asset or liability comprises_the present value of the defined benefit obligation less past
service costs not yet recognised and less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be
settled directly, less actuarial losses not yet recognised. The value of any asset is the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the
plan. :

(s) Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent liability recognised ih a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently,
it is measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for
provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition. . ?

Zt)‘ Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to.
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make lease payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a lease agreement. The Group receives a fee for these services which is recognised
~ over the contractual life of the agreement.
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. 2.5 Changes to Standards and Interpretations

The following new standards and amendments to existing standards were issued during the year.
Standards and amendments which were issued and came into effect during the year !

Amendment to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative
The amendment requires entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. The Group has provided the information in Note 26.

Amendment to IAS. 12 Income taxes: Recogmtlon of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable proﬁts
against which it may make deductions on the reversal of deductible temporary difference related to unrealised
losses. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits
and explain the circumstances in ‘which taxable proﬁt may- include the recovery of some assets for more than
their carrying amount. . .

The Group applied amendments retrospectively. However, their application has no effect on the Group’s
financial position-and performance as the Group has no deductible temporary differences or assets that are in the
scope of the amendments.

~ Annual Improvement 2014-2016 cycle
These improvements include:

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards - Deletion of short-term exemptions
for first-time adopters. Short-term exemptions in paragraphs E3-E7 of IFRS 1 were deleted because they have
now served their intended purpose. The amendment is effective from | January 2018. This amendment is not
applicable to the Group. . ) -

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Clarification that measuring investees at fair value

through profit or loss is an mvestment-by mvestment choice. These amendments are not applicable to the-
Group.
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

2.5 . Changes to Standards and Interpretations (continued)

Standards issued and but not yet effective .

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments which reflects all phases of the
financial instruments project and replaces 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all
previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment, and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative information is not
compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requnrements are generally applied prospectwely, with some limited

exceptions.

While areas such as the amortised cost basis of valuation and the effective interest rate method of recognition
are largely unchanged in the new standard, the new ‘basis of accounting for impairments ‘is likely to have a
significant impact on the Group due to the requirement for earlier recognition of losses.

The Group plans to adopt the new standard from 1 April 2018 and will not restate comparative information.

During 2017, the Group has performed a detailed impact assessment of all three aspects of IFRS 9. This

assessment is based on currently available information and may be subject to changes arising from further
reasonable and supportable information being made available to the Group during 2018/19 when the Group will

adopt IFRS 9. Overall, the Group expects an increase in impairment loss allowance resulting in a negative

impact on equity as discussed below.

(a) Classification and measurement
The Group does not expect any impact on its balance sheet or equity on applying the classification and
measurement requirements of IFRS. oo

Loans as well as trade receivables are held to collect contractual cash flows and are expected to give rise to cash
flows representing solely payments of principal and interest. The Group analysed the contractual cash flow
characteristics of those instruments and concluded that they meet the criteria for amortised cost measurement
under IFRS 9. Therefore, reclassification for these instruments is not required. :

The Group currently holds some non-derivative financial assets at fair value through P&L and the Group has

concluded that these meet the criteria for fair value through P&L measurement under IFRS 9. Therefore,
reclassification for these instruments is not required. .

-
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2.5 Changes to Standards and Interpretations (contiﬁued)

(b) Impairment :

IFRS 9 requires the Group to record expected credit losses on all of its debt securities, loans, lease and trade
receivables, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified approach on all lease
and trade receivables as well as receivables with maturity of <12 months. For all other loans and receivables, the
Group will apply the general approach and record expected credit losses on a 12-month basis on performing
receivables and lifetime expected losses for recewables with significant credit degradation or those that are
credit impaired.

- The Group has determined that the increase in loss allowance is expected to be in the range of £7m to £10m
with a corresponding decrease in the deferred tax liability at a prevailing rate. This assessment is based on
currently available information which is subject to changes arising from further reasonable and supportable’
information being made available to the Group during 2018/19.

(c) Hedge accounting ' ‘

The Group will be adopting hedge accountmg under IFRS 9 from 1 April 2018. The Group determined that all
existing hedge relationships that are currently designated in effective hedging relationships will continue to
" qualify for hedge accounting under IFRS 9. The Group has chosen not to retrospectively apply IFRS 9 on
transition to the hedges where the Group excluded the forward points from the hedge designation under IAS 39.
‘As IFRS 9 does not change the general principles of how an entity accounts. for effective hedges, applying the
‘hedging requirements of IFRS 9 is not expected to have a significant impact on Group’s financial statements. -
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:2.5\ Changes to Standards and-Interpretations (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers .
IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and amended in April 2016, and establishes a single, principles based five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an
-amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The standard is effective from periods béginning on or after 1 January 2018,

The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS except IAS
17 Leases and 1AS 39 / IFRS 9 Financial Instruments as noted below. The Group plans to adopt the new
standard on .1 April 2018 using the modified retrospective ‘method which doesnt require restatement of
comparatwes

During the year, the Group performed an impact assessment of IFRS 15 and does not expect significant changes
to the income statement.

The Group’s existing policies for identification of performance obligations, determination of the transaction
price and their allocation to performance obligations are in line with IFRS 15.

A significant portion of Group revenue is recogmsed under IAS 17 Leases and IAS 39 Financial Instrument
(IFRS 9 from | April 2018).

IFRS 16 Leases

This standard was issued in January 2016 and it replaces the existing standard IAS 17 Leases. The standard
requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. For lessors, there is little change to the
existing accounting in IAS 17 Leases. The new standard is effective from periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019 with early adoption permitted, provided the new revenue standard, IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts .with Customers, has been applied, or is applied at the same date as IFRS 16. This standard does not
have a material impact on the. Group as a lessor but during 2018/19, the Group will be assessing the impact as a
lessee. The Group does not intend to early adopt IFRS 16 and thereby will only adopt it from 1 April 2019.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

- This standard was issued in May 2017 and it is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. The
standard covers recognition, measurement presentation and disclosures for insurance contracts. The standard
applies to all types of insurance contracts-and its objective is to provide a comprehensive accounting model for
insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent for insurers. This standard is not applicable to the Group.
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2.5 Changes to Standards and [nterpretations (continued)

Amendment to IFRS 2:Share-based Payment -

These amendments were issued .in June 2016 and clanfy the standard in relation to the accounting for

cash-settled share based payment transactions that include a ‘performance condition, the classification of

share-based payment transactions with net -settlement features, and the accounting for modifications of

share-based payment transactions from cash-settled to equity-settled.” This amendment is effective for periods .
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. There are no share based payments managed by the Group and therefore

this amendment will have no impact on the Group.

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments to IFRS 4

The amendments. address concerns arising from implementing the new financial instruments standard, IFRS 9,
before implementing IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, which replaces IFRS 4. The amendments introduce two
options for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 and an overlay"
approach. The temporary exemption is first applied for reporting periods beginning on or after 1'January 2018.
An entity may elect the overlay approach when it first applies IFRS 9 and apply that approach retrospectively to
financial assets designated on transition te IFRS 9. The entity restates comparative information reflecting the
overlay approach if, and only if, the entity restates comparative mformatlon when applymg IFRS 9. These
amendments are not applicable to the Group.
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2.6 Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or
liability affected in future periods; key areas are discussed below. ’

Fair Value Measurement

_Some financial instruments, such as all derivatives and certain borrowings in fair value hedge relationships are
measured and shown on the statement of financial position at their fair value determined at each statement of
financial position date. Other financial instruments are measured at amortised cost on the statement of financial
- position and their fair values disclosed in Note 15. .

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or ‘paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based upon the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place in either:

» The principal market for the asset or liability;
« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability; or,
» The principal or the most advantageous market being one that is accessible to the Group. ‘

- The fair value of an asset or a liability. is measured, as near as practically possible, using assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest. Any fair value measurements of a non-financial asset take into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the-asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to.
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable market inputs. ’

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level mput that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole: ‘

* Level I: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for 1dentlcal assets or liabilities

« Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value and
measurement is directly observable

« Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level- mput that is 51gmf cant to the fair value and
measurement is unobservable
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2.6 Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions (continued) o ‘

At the end of each reporting period the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of Financial Assets
Discussed in note 2.4(i) above.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Discussed in note 2.4(q) above.

Residual values for operating leased assets
Discussed in note 2.4(f) above.

Retirement Benefit Obligation

The cost of the defined benefit scheme and obligation is determined using actuarial valuations. This involves
making assumptions about discount rates, future salary. increases, mortality rates and future pension increases.
-Due to the long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. Further detalls
are provided in note 24.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of corporate bonds with at
least an. ‘AA’ rating or above, as set by an internationally acknowledged rating agency, and extrapolated as
needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation. The
mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Future salary increases and pension increases are
based on expected future inflation rates. :

Taxes
"The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to routine tax audits and also a process whereby tax computations
are discussed and agreed with the appropriate authorities. Whilst the ultimate outcome of such tax audits and
discussions cannot be determined with certainty, management estimates the level of provision required for both
current and deferred tax on the basis of professnonal advice and the nature of current dlscusswns w1th the tax
authority concerned. \

Provision for Customer Claims i

The Group recognises a customer claims provision, where the Group is jointly and severally liable to customers
who have claims against retailers or the Group for misrepresentation, breach of contract or customer redress, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in 2.4(n). The Group also recognises customer redress provision
* for legal or regulatory proceedings. Further details are included in note 21.

a
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3 Investment in Subsidiaries (Company)

Hitachi Capital Hitachi Capital
Vehicle  Hitachi Capital Insurance .
Solutions Ltd  Polska Sp. z o.0. Europe Ltd Total
- £m £m £fm £m
At 31 March 2016 29 - 37 0.9 7.5
Repayment of capital . '

. contribution o (1.2) - 0.9) @.1)
Impairment loss - 2.4) - 2.4)
At 31 March 2017 . 1.7 1.3 . - 3.0
Disposal of subsidiary . e (1.3) - : (1.3)
At 31 March 2018 ‘ 1.7 - - 1.7

At 31 March 2017, management determined that due to unfavourable market conditions, the carrying amount of
investment in Hitachi Capital Polska Sp. z 0.0. was higher than its value in use, calculated based on discounted
future projected cash flows. As a result, the investment was partially impaired and a charge of £2.4m was
recognised in the Company’s income statement.

On 11 October 2017, the Group sold Hitachi Capital Polska Sp. z 0.0, a wholly owned subsidiary, to its
immediate parent company, Hitachi Capital Corporation. The details can be found in Note-12.

All subsidiaries are wholly owned and dlrectly held by the Company The registered addresses can be found
within Company Information on page 1

4  Operating segment information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into a corporate centre and five business units based on their
products and services. This split is the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information and is
in accordance with the measures reported to decision makers for the purpose of allocating resources to the
segments and assessing their performance. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit before tax.

The principall activities of each business unit are as follows:
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Business segment

__Principal activities

Consumer Finance (HCCF)

Retail point of sale and personal finance

Vehicle Solutions (HCVS) and
Hitachi Capital Polska Sp. z 0.0. (HCPL)

Vehicle management solutions and fleet

management services

Business Finance (HCBF)

Medium term asset finance and Hitachi captive

business

Invoice Finance (HCIF)

Factoring, invoice discounting, and accounts
‘payable financing

Corporate

\

Head office including group treasury activities

No revenues earned from transactions with a single external customer amount to 10% or more of the Group’s
revenues in either the 2018 or 2017 reporting periods. As the activities of the Group are predominantly carried
out in the UK no geographical analysis is presented. Inter segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

Year ended 31 March 2018

Revenue
Interest income
Other external income

Total revenue

Other allocations
Finance costs
Depreciation & impairment of
operating lease assets
Bad debt impairment
Other

Profit/(loss) before tax
Income tax
Proﬁt/(lbs;) after tax
Assets

Liabilities .
Other disclosures:

Capital expenditures
Equity and Reserves -

HCVS

. & .
HCCF HCPL HCBF HCIF Corporate Group
© fm £m £m £m £m £m
86.3 - - 9.8 0.1 1 96.2
78.8 379.2 69.7 0.1 1.0 .528.6
165.1 379.2 69.7 9.7 1.1 624.8

(265)  (10.1)  (14.0) (0.8) - (51.4)
- (1529) (7.3) - - (160.2)
(14.2) (0.8) 1.2) 0.1) 0.3) (16.6)
(51.6)  (193.3) (25.8) (10.9) 1.4 (280.2)
72.8 22.1 214 2.1) 2.2 116.4
(14.2) (4.8) 4.2) 0.4 0.7 (23.5)
58.6. 17.3 17.2 (1.7) 1.5 92.9
2,831.3 882.0  1,074.7 178.3 1245  5,090.8
2,491.9 840.9  1,004.1 170.4 . (7.1)  4,500.2
- 366.5 7.9 - 105 384.9
. - - - 590.6 590.6
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Year ended 31 March 2017

Revenue
Interest income
Other external income

Total revenue

Other allocations
Finance costs
Depreciation & impairment of
operating lease assets
Bad debt impairment
Other

Profit/(loss) before tax
Income tax

Profit/(loss) after tax

Assets
Liabilities
Other disclosures:

Capital expenditures
~ Equity and Reserves

" HCVS |,
& \
HCCF HCPL HCBF HCIF Corporate Group
- £m £m £fm £m £m £m
. )
849 - - 10.0 - 94.9
66.5 3825 65.0 - - 514.0
151.4 382.5 65.0 10:0 - 608.9
(253)  (106) °  (13.2) ©5) . (49.6) -
- (145.0) @.D - - 153
(16.9) - (1.2) . - - (18.1)
(47.0)°  (2003)  (22.1) (10.0) - (279.4)
62.2 26.6 20.4 (0.5) - 108.7
(12.7) 6:1) (41) 0.1 - (22.8)
49.5 20.5 16.3 ~(0.4)- - 85.9
2,306.4 872.3 965.1 122.0 168.9  4,434.7
2,025.7 847.8 911.7 112.5 547  3,952.4
01 3722 6.2 0.5 6.1 385.1
- 24.5 - - 457.8 482.3
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5 Revenue

The analysis of the Group's revenue for the year from continuing operations is as follows:

2017

. 2018
, ' £m £m

Interest income ' : . 96.2 94.9
Finance lease income ' 52.5 S1.1
Operating lease rental income : ' 245.5 239.7
Sale of operating lease assets 1283 124.0

" Fee income related to the activities above ‘97.4 ° 96.5
Other income A ) 4.9 2.7

' ‘ 624.8 608.9

Total revenue

In 2018, other income includes £0.2m profit on disposal of Hitachi Capital Polska Sp. z 0.0., a wholly owned

subsidiary of the Group, to its immediate parent company, Hitachi Capital Corporation.

v

6 Other cost of sales

) 2018 2017
Note » £m £m
Commission expense 3.0 25
Customer claim charges and provisions 21 ) . . 34 0.4)
Operating lease assets net book value ’ . © 1259 125.4
Other expenses ) 0.4 3.5
Total other cost of sales - 132.7 131.0

Page 73



Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

7 Administrative expenses and Auditor's remuneration

dees and salaries

Social security costs

Pension and other post-employment benefit costs
Other employee expense
Premises and office

IT and telephony

Marketing '

Professional services and other
Impairment of goodwill

Auditor's remuneration
- Audit of the financial statements
Other assurance services

‘Total administration expenses

2018 2017

£m £m
46.3 41.7
6.9 5.8
2.5 2.3
16.6 17.5
8.6 9.2
i1.4 14.0
.10.3 11.0¢
14.2 13.9
- 3.0

0.9 09
0.1 0.1
117.8 119.4

The number of fuil time equivalent employees at 31 March 2018 was 1,238 (2017: 1,214), which included
permanent and temporary staff as well as those on fixed term contracts. Of this, HCUK Company had 1,238

(2017: 1,168).

. The Group employed an average of l 196 (2017 1,176) employces during the year. Of this, HCUK Company

had 1,152 (2017: 1,132).,

In 2017, an annual assessment found the goodwill in the Vehicle Solutions division to be impaired By £3.0m in
" line with the Group’s accounting policy for the 1mpa1rment of goodwnll (note 2.4(a)). This cost was included in

administration expenses.
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8 Income tax

2018 2017

£m . £m

Current income tax .
Charge for the year : T 213 28.3
UK corporation tax adjustment to prior periods . (0.9) 2.0

26.4 30.3
Defer;'ed taxaﬁon _ )
Origination and reversal of temporary differences in the current year “.1n (5.5)
Adjustment in respect of prior years ' 1.2 (2.0)
Total o , (2.9) (7.5)
Tax charge on profit , i : 23.5 22.8

Adjustments in respect of prior years are required due to the nature of the Group’s business, i.e. having a large -
number of assets qualifying for capital allowances. It is necessary, due to time constraints, to estimate the
allowances available at the time the financial statements are prepared. This is largely due to the availability of
18% and 8% capital allowances on cars dependent upon CO2 emissions and short life asset elections for others.
When the tax computations are prepared this can result in a swing between deferred and current tax. This would
normally net out but at times of falling corporation tax rates this creates an adjustment. In 2018, there were net
prior year adjustments of £0.3m (2017: £nil).

The effective tax rate on profit before tax for the year was 20.2% (2017: 21.0%) compared to the standard rate
of corporation tax of 19% (2017: 19%).

~

The differences are reconciled below:

2018 2017

) ~ £m £m
Profit before tax : 4 S 1164 108.7
. Tax on profit at UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2017: 20%) . , . 22.1 ’ 217
Increase (decrease) in current tax from adjustment for prior periods 0.3 . -
Increase (decrease) from effect of expenses not deductlble in
determining taxable profit (tax loss) : 0.1 0.8
Deferred tax expense (credit) relatmg to changes in tax rates or laws ~ 1.0 0.3
Tax charge . - 235 - 228

The UK rate of corporation tax reduced from 20% to 19% from 1 April 2017. Future rates which have also been
enacted are: a reduction to 17% from 1 Aprll 2020. Deferred tax has been provided at 17% at 31 March 2018.
This increased the tax charge in 2018 through the income statément of £1.0m (2017: £0.3m increase).

\
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8 Income tax (continued)

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

N

Gain/(]oss) on cash flow hedges (nét)

Foreign currency translation
gains/(losses)

Remeasurements of post employment

benefit obligations
\.

Gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges (net)

Foreign currency translation
gains/(losses)

Remeasurements of post employment
benefit obligations

’

2018
Tax (expense) :
Before tax benefit Net of tax
£m- £m £m
14.9 Y9 12.0
0.2) - (0.2)
4.5 0.9) 3.6
19.2 (3.8) 15.4
2017
Tax (expense)
Before tax benefit Net of tax
£m £m ~ £m
3.9 0.7) 3.2
(0.1) - 0.1)
(12 1.4 (5.8)°
(3.4) 0.7 2.7)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

-

8 Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax
Deferred taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method. There are no temporary
differences in respect of which deferred tax has not been recognised. -

The deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset for reporting purposes on the basis that deferred tax
predominantly arises in respect of items taxable within the same jurisdiction (UK) and it is expected that a right
of set-off will exist when the items reverse.

‘ Group A .

Deferred tax movement during the prior year:

. Recognised in’
o : . other

Recogmsed in comprehensive At
At 1 April 2016 income income 31 March 2017
) £m £m - £fm £m
Accelerated tax depreciation ) 2.8) 7.7 - 49 .
Pension benefit obligations - (00) © o (0.5) 1.4 0.8
Revaluation of cash flow hedges 3.0 ' - 0.7) . 2.3
Other items ~ 0.5 0.3 - 0.8
Net tax assets/(liabilities) 0.6 7.5 0.7 8.8
Deferred tax movement during the year:
Recognised in
- other . .
Recognised in comprehensive Recognised in - At
At 1 April 2017 income "~ income - equity 31 March 2018
£m £m £m £m £m
Accelerated tax .
depreciation 49 3.0 - 0.3) 7.6
Pension benefit obllgatlons 0.8 ' (0.2) 0.9) ) - (0.3)
Revaluation of cash flow T , :
A hedges 23 - (2.8) ©.1) - (0.6)
Other items ) 0.8 0.1 - 0.1) 0.8
Net tax assets/(liabilities) 8.8 2.9 3.7 (0.5) 7.5

Page 77



Hitachi Capital (UK) PLC .

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

8 Income tax (continued)

Company

Deferred tax movement during the prior year:

Récognised in

‘ : other .
" Recognised in comprehensive Recognised in © At
At 1 April 2016 . income - income equity 31 March 2017
“£m £m- £m £m £m
Accelerated tax ' .
depreciation ’ 1.8 : 7.3 - (4.6) 45
Pension benefit obligations 0.1) : (0.5) 1.4 - 0.8
Revaluation of cash flow : : :
hedges 3.0 ' - (0.8) - 2.2
Other items . 0.4 0.3 - - 0.7
Net tax assets/(liabilities) 5.1 7.1 ‘ 0.6 (4.6) 8.2
Deferred tax movement during the year:
‘ Recognised in
. . other
Recognised in comprehensive At

income 31 March 2018

At 1 April 2017 income
£m £m £m £m
Accelerated tax depreciation o 4.5 3.0 - 7.5
" Pension benefit obligations 08 ° - (0.2) 0.9) (0.3)
Revaluation of cash flow hedges - 22 - (2.8) . (0.6)
Other items 0.7 0.2 - 0.9
3.7) 7.5

Net tax assets/(liabilities) 8.2 : 3.0
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9 Property, plant and equipn'lent

Group . . -~

At 31 March 2018, the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment amounting to £95.5m (2017: £52.0m), being assets to be leased to customers under operating
leases. Management has determined that the necessary funding will be available from existing facilities to cover
these commitments.

Depreciation expense for the Group of £161.4m (2017: £152.8m) relating to operating leased assets was
included in cost of sales. A further impairment release of £1.2m (2017: charge of £0.3m) relating to operating
leased assets was also included in cost of sales. Depreciation expense relating to the remainder of the Group s
property, plant and equipment of £2.4m (2017 £3.0m) was included in administrative expenses.

The Company tests annually for any impairment on operating leased asset residual values. Any impairment.
. loss/gain is calculated by reference to the value in use of the operating leased assets. The key assumptions used. .
in determining the value in use are the discount rate, disposal performance over market guides and costs of
disposal. The weighted average discount rate used was 3.97% (2017: 4.08%).

)
Disposal of a subsidiary relates to Hitachi Capital Polska Sp. z 0.0., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
which was sold to its immediate parent company, Hitachi Capital Cotporation on 11 October 2017 (Note 12).
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9 Properfy, plant and equipment (continued)

At31March 2018 . 5.7

L. Furniture,
Land and Motor fittings and Operating
. buildings ~  vehicles equipment  leased assets Total
: £m £m £m £m £m
Cost : .
At 1 April 2016 C 6.2 1.9 14.9 988.3 1,011.3
Additions ‘ 0.1 2.3 1.6 375.9 379.9
Disposals - (L.1) - (271.6) . (272.7) -~
Foreign exchange movements - 0.1 (0.1) 1.9 1.9
“ At 31 March 2017 6.3 3.2 16.4 1,094.5 1,120.4
Additions - 0.8 0.5 373.6 374.9
Disposals . .- - (1.0) (253.6) (254.6)
Transfers. - - ©0.1) - (0.1)
Disposal of a subsidiary - (4.0) (0.1) (42.6) (46.7)
At 31 March 2018 6.3 - 15.7° 1,171.9 1,193.9
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Atl ;April 2016 . 104 0.5 9.0 333.2 343.1
- Charge for year A 0.4 2.5 152.8 155.8
Disposals - (0.5) - (151.9) ©(152.4)
Impairment loss : : - - - 0.3 0.3
Foreign exchange movements . - - - 0.4 0.4
At31 March2017. . 0.5 0.4 11.5 334.8 347.2
Charge for the year 0.1 0.1 2.2 161.4 163.8
Disposals .- - (1.0) (132.3) (133.3)
Impairment release - - - (1.2) (1.2)
Transfers ' - - ©.1) - 0.1)
Disposal of a subsidiary - -(0.5) 0.1) 9.1) 9.7)
At 31 March 2018 ' 0.6 - 12.5 353.6 366.7
Carrying amount .
At 31 March 2017 5.8 2.8 4.9 . 759.7 773.2
- 32 818.3 827.2
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.9 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Company ’

Cost
At 1 April 2016
Additions ‘
Acquired through business
. combinations

‘ Disposals
At 31 March 2017
Additions
Disposals
" Transfers

At 31 March 2018

+

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At 1 April 2016
Charge for the year
Disposals
Impairment loss
Transfer of business from
subsidiary

At 31 March 2017
Charge for the year
Disposals
Impairment release
Transfers

At 31 March 2018

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2017
At 31 March 2018

5.6

. Furniture,
Land and fittings and Operating
buildings equipment - leased assets Total
£m £m £m £m
- 12.1 604 72.5
- 1.6 359.2 360.8
59 25 9082 916.6
- - (268.8) (268.8)
5.9 16.2 1,059.0 1,081.1
- 0.6 365.6 366.2
. - 0.9 (252.3) ° (253.2)
2 - 0.1) - 0.1)
5.9 15.8 1,172.3 1,194.0
- 6.8 . 27.2 34.0
- 25 148.8 151.3 .
- - (150.7) (150.7)
- - 0.3 v 03
0.2 : 2.1 303.0 305.3
0.2 11.4 328.6 340.2
0.1 - 2.1 158.3 160.5 -
- (0.9) (131.7) (132.6)
- - (1.2) (1.2)
- (0.1 - (D)
0.3 12.5 354.0 366.8
5.7 4.8 730.4 '740.9
3.3 818.3 827.2
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[y

10 Intangible assets

Group -
Capitalised
software - Intangibles Goodwill Total
£m £m £m- £m

Cost'or valuation o

At 1 April 2016 ° ' 14.2 10 13.9 29.1

Additions 5.2 - - 52

At 31 March 2017 19.4 1.0 ) - 13.9 - 34.3

Additions ' - 10.0 ' - - 10.0

Disposals v - (7.3) . (1.oy . 0.2) (8.5)

Disposal of a subsidiary (0.1) - - . (0.1)

At 31 March 2018 22.0 - : - 13.7 35.7

Amortisation and impairment L . .

At 1 April 2016 : . 12,0 1.0 - 13.0
" Amortisation charge ) 1.3 - - 1.3 -

Impairment ) o Y. - 30 3.0

At 31 March 2017 ) 13.3 1.0 3.0 17.3

Amortisation charge ’ B N T - 1.6

Amortisation eliminated on

disposals ., ' (7.3) (1.0) - (8.3)
" Disposal of a subsidiary (0.1) - ) - (0.1)
~ At 31 March 2018 . ) 7.5 . - 3.0 105
* Carrying amount _ ‘

At 31 March 2017 6.1 ) - 10.9 17.0

At 31 March 2018 - 14.5 - 10.7 25.2
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10 Intangible assets (continued)

Disposals include amounts relating to Hitachi Capital Polska Sp. z 0.0., a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, which was sold to its immediate parent company, Hitachi Capital Corporation on 11 October 2017 (Note
12).

Company" -
Capitalised -
Goodwill software Total
£m . - £m £m

Cost or valhation ) . .
At 1 April 2016 : ' 4.9 10.1 . 15.0
Additions : = , ©52 C52
Acquired through business combinations i 88 4.0 12.8
At 31 March 2017 13.7 19.3 33.0
Additions : : . - . 100 10.0
Disposals o ‘ : : . (7.3) (7.3)
At31 March 2018 . S ' ' 13.7 22.0 35.7
Anfortisation '

At 1 April 2016 , ' - 8.0 - 8.0
Transfer of business from subsidiary - 4.0 ' 4.0
Amortisation charge : - 1.3 1.3
Impairment . - © 3.0 - 3.0
At 31 March 2017 ' : 3.0 13.3. ~ 163
Amortisation charge ’ - 1.4 1.4
Amortisation eliminated on disposals S - (7.2) (7.2)
At 31 March 2018 ’ 3.0 7.5 10.5
Carrying amount
At31 March 2017 , 107 60 ' 167
At 31 March 2018 _ 10.7 © 145 25.2

The amortisation charge relatmg to capitalised software and other intangibles is mcluded in the admlmstratwe
expense line of the income statement.

At 31 March 2018, neither the Group nor the Company had any contractual commitments for the acqulsmon of

intangible assets (2017: None). . T

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to individual cash-generating units, which
are also reportable business segments, for impairment testing, as follows:

N
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10 Intangible assets (continued)

2018 2017
£m ' £m
Carrying amount of goodwill by business segment
Invoice Finance : 4.9 4.9
Driving Instructor Solutions. ' : ' 4.1 S 44
Commercial Vehicle Solutions _ ’ 1.7 1.7.
Hitachi Capital Polska Sp. z o.0. - 0.2

Total . 10.7 10.9

The recoverable amount for each cash generating unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation
-using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior management covering a four year period.
The pre-tax discount rates of 14.9% (2017: 14.9%) were applied to cash flow projections and cash flows beyond
the four year period were extrapolated using a range of growth rates between 2% and 10% (2017: 2% and 10%)
depending’ on the nature of the business segments.

The key assumptions used in the calculation of value in use were budget assumptions to which an estimate of
growth rate was used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period and a discount rate was then applied.
The budgets for each cash generating unit are representative of operational and financial aspects that relate to
that unit and include past experience, default rates, impairment implications and market conditions prevailing at
the time. As a result, management have used their current asset base and new sales opportunities to derive the
- revenue and profitability expectations for the operating unit. These budgets are approved by senior management
and the parent company. The growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period has been
based on the long term growth rate of the economy. An internal rate of return method was used in the
calculation of value in use, which resulted in returns in excess of the parent company’s minimum expectations.

'Disposal of Hitachi Capital Polska Sp. z o. o.
During the year, the Group sold Hitachi Cap1tal Polska Sp. z 0.0., 2 wholly owned subSIdlary, to its immediate
parent company, Hitachi Capital Corporation (Note 12).

11 .Loans and Receivables

°

Movements in the allowances for impairment losses

2008 - 2017
) £m £m
Group i
At 1 April . , o 228 16.3
Amounts written off : : ' 147 - (13.7)
" Recoveries o 2.6 . 2.1
Charge to the income statement ' 15.7 181
Total at 31 March ’ - 26.4 22.8
Loans and receivables, gross of impairment : ' 4,1189 3,404.6
Loans and receivables, net of impairment ' 4,092.5 3,381.8
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‘11 Loans and Receivables (continued)

2018 2017
. £m £m
Company . . . .

- At 1 April . 22.8 16.3
Amounts written off . (14.6) (13.7)
Recoveries , o 2.6 2.1
Charge to the income statement ‘ ‘ 15.6 18.1
Total at 31 March 26.4 228
Loans and receivables, gross of impairment : 4,118.9 3,395.4
Loans and receivables, net of impairment ’ 4,092.5 3,372.6

Loans and receivables, net of impairment, together with weighted average effective interest rates, are analysed

further below.

2018 - 2017
£m % £m
Group ,
Financial lease receivables . . 117.2 5.2 133.0
Hire Purchase agreements 959.3 5.0 - 8274
Instalment finance agreements ' 2,77 l,i 7.8 22722
Other loans and advances 244.9 ] 149.2
Total . . ' 4,092.5 o 6.7 3,381.8
2018 : , : 2017
£m % - £m
Company ° '.
Financial lease receivables 1172 5.2 119.0
Hire Purchase agreements . 959.3 5.0 T 8274
Instalment finance agreements L 2,771.1 78 2,272.2
Other loans and advances ) 244.9 - 154.0
Total : . 4,092.5 6.7 3,372.6

The amortised present values of the loans and receivables, analysed by residual maturity:
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11 Loans and Receivables (continued)

<lyr 1-3 yrs 3-5yrs >5 yrs Total

Group ) £m £m ~ £m " £m £m
Finance lease receivables at S . ) . ~
31 March 2018

- Finance leases - gross ) 46.7 62.6 . 193 0.8 129.4
Deferred revenue _ (5.4) @ 0.7) _— (10.8)
Impairment ' T (0.5) 0.7) o 02) - 1.4)
Total , 20.8 572 184 0.8 117.2
Finance lease receivables at
31 March 2017 . . 3
Finance leases - gross 4938 70.6 . 239 13 1456
.Deferred revenue 5.7 5.2) 0.8) ' - aLmn
Impairment . o ©03) , 0.5) 0.1} ' - 0.9)
Total ' ‘ 43.8 64.9 230 . . 1.3 133.0
Hire Purchase agreements
at 31 March 2018 -
Hire purchase agreements - . .
gross g ) 3823 494.1 161.1 7.8 1,045.3
Deferred revenue 40.1) - (35.7) . (5.2) 0.5) (81.5)
Impairment .7 @ ©.7) - .5)
Total - 340.5 456.3 155.2° 7.3 . 959.3
Hire Purchase agreements
at 31 March 2017

- Hire purchase agreements - .
gross . 3335 427.5 . 136.1 6.9 904.0
Deferred revenue 36.2) (30.9) @a.5) - 04 (720
Impairment ‘ .7 (2.2) ©.7) - 4.6)
Total 295.6- 394.4 130.9 ) 6.5 827.4
Instalment Finance at 31
March 2018 . .
Instalment finance - gross " 1,207.1 1,391.9 458.6 131.5 3,189.1
Deferred revenue, - (160.4) (154.9) (49.5) (33.1) (397.9)
Impairment . (7.6) 8.9 29 0.7) (20.1)
Total _ : 1,039.1 1,228.1 406.2 97.7 2,771.1
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11 Loans and Receivables (continued)

B . <lyr. 1-3 yrs 3-S5 yrs >5 yrs Total .
Group £m £m £m £m - £m
Instalment Finance at 31
March 2017 ' o ' .
Instalment finance - gross 1,043.2 1,118.6 360.6 105.1 2,627.5 -
Deferred revenue (142.0) T (132.0) 41.3) (23.3)  -(338.6)
lmpa\i}ment . (6.6) (7.2) (2.3) (0:6) (16.7)
Total ' 894.6 979.4 317.0 812 22722

" Other Loans and Advances
at 31 March 2018 . ‘
Other loans - gross 2167 258 . 3.0 - 2455
Deferred revenue 0.2) v - - - - . . (02)
Impairment 0.4) - - - ©0.4)
Total 216.1 25.8 : 3.0 - 244.9
Other Loans and Advances ,
at31 March 2017 - , .
Other loans - gross “134.1 12.4 3.2 0.2 149.9
Deferred revenue - 0.1) : - - - (0.1)
Impairment 0.6) - - - (0.6)
Total 133.4 12.4 © 3.2 0.2 149.2
- Total loans and receivables,
net of impairment - as at 31 )
March 2018 1,636.5 1,767.4 582.8 105.8 4,092.5
Total loans and receivables, N
net of impairment - as at 31 .
March 2017 1,367.4 1,451.1 474.1 89.2 3,381.8
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11 Loans and Receivables (continued)

Company

" Finance lease receivables at
31 March 2018
Finance leases - gross
Deferred revenue
Impairment

Total

- Finance lease receivables at

31 March 2017

Finance leases - gross
_Deferred revenue

Impairment

Total

Hire Purchase agreements
at 31 March 2018

Hire purchase agreements -
gross

Deferred revenue
Impairment .

Total

Hire Purchase agreements
at 31 March 2017

Hire purchase agreements -
gross :

Deferred revenue
Impairment

Total -

Instalment Finance at 31
March 2018

Instalment finance - gross
Deferred revenue
[mpairmen't

Total
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<lyr 1-3 yrs 3-S5 yrs >S5 yrs Total
£m £m £m . £fm £m
46.7 62.6 19.3 0.8 129.4
(5.4) 4.7 0.7) - (10.8)
0.5) 0.7) 0.2) - (1.9)
40.8 57.2 18.4 0.8 117.2
45.5 © 63.2 21.7 1.2 131.6
EN)) (5.2). (0.8) - (11.7)
0.3) (0.5) ©.1n - 0.9)
39.5 57.5 . 20.8 1.2 119.0 -
382.3 494.1 161.1 78 1,045.3
(40.1) (35.7) 5.2) 0.5 (81.5)
1.7 @.1) 0.7) - 4.5)
340.5 456.3 - 155.2 7.3 959.3
333.5 427.5 136.1 6.9 - 904.0
(36.2) (30.9) (4.5) (0.4) (72.0)
_(1.8) @.n 0.7) - (4.6)
©295.5 394.5 130.9 6.5 827.4
1,207.1 1,391.9 458.6 131.5 3,189.1
(160.4) (154.9) (49.5) (33.1) (397.9)
" (7.6) (8.9 2.9 0.7) (20.1)
1,039.1 1,228.1 406.2 . 2,771.1
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11 Loans and Receivables (continued) _

Company

- Instalment Finance at 31

1]

March 2017

Instalment finance - gross
Deferred revenue
Impairment

Total

Other Loans and Advances -
at 31 March 2018

Other loans - gross
Deferred revenue
Impairment

Total

Other Loans and Advances
at 31 March 2017

Other loans - gross
Deferred revenue
Impairment

Loans receivable from
subsidiaries

Total

. Total loans and receivables,

net of impairment - as at 31
March 2018

-

AN

" Total loans and receivables,

net of impairment - as at 31
March 2017 -

<lyr. 1-3 yrs 3-5 'yrs >5 yrs Total
£m £m "£m £m £m
1,043.2 1,118.6 360.6 105.1 2,627.5
(142.0) (132.0) (41.3) (233)  (338.6)
(6.6) (7.2) (2.3) (0.6) (16.7)
. 894.6 979.4 317.0 81.2 2,272.2
216.7 .25.8 3.0 - 2455 .
0.2) - - - 0.2)
0.4) - - - 0.4)
216.1 ~25.8 3.0 - 244.9
134.1 !2.3 3.2 0.2 149.8
" (0.1) - - - 0.1)
0.6) - - - 0.6)
- - - 4.9 4.9
133.4 12.3 3.2 5.1 154.0
1,636.5 1,767.4 582.8 105.8 4,092.5
1,363.0 1,443.7 ‘ 471.9 94.0 3,372.6 -
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11 Loans and R_eceivables (continued)

In the above Other Loans and Advances, the Company has a loan receivable of £nil (2017: £4.9m) from the
subsidiaries in the Group. There is no deferral of revenue applied and the amount is due in over 5 years. i

The unguaranteed residual value of asséts leased under finance leases by the Group and Company at the
reporting date is £7.1m (2017: £6.0m).

Refer to note 28 for disclosures regarding transfer of financial assets, including securitisations.

The interest rate in the majority of loans and receivables is fixed at the contract date for all of the lending term.
These balances are therefore subject to fair value interest rate risk. Approximately £41.4m (2017: £48.1m) of
loans and receivables are written at floating interest rates, and are therefore subject to cash flow interest rate
risk.

12 Disposal ofsubsndlary ' !

On 11 October 2017, the Group sold Hitachi Capital Polska Sp. z o.0., a wholly owned subsidiary, to its
immediate parent company, Hitachi Capltal Corporation for a cash consnderatlon of £3.1m.

The carrymg values of the identifiable assets and llabllmes of Hitachi Capital Polska Sp z 0.0. as at 30
September 2017 and at prior year end are set out below.

Carrying value at , Carrying value at

30 September 2017 31 March 2017
£m ' £m
Assets and liabilities disposed of: )

_ Property, plant and equipment ' o 35.9 31.2
Inventory . - . 09 . 0.9 -
Trade receivables . 2.8 . 22
Bank balances and cash ) (0.2) 1.2
Other assets 25.7 18.3
Trade payables (1.5) (1.0)
Other liabilities (60.6) (50.1)
Attributable goodwill 0.2 0.2

' 3.2 2.9
Gain/(loss) on disposal ' , (0.1
Total consideration ) 3.1
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¥

12 Disposal of subsidiary (continued) .

Satisfied by:

- Cash and cash equivalents received

Cash flow analysis:

Cash consideration received

. Less: cash and cash equivalent‘balancés disposed of

Net cash inflow arising on'disposal

3.1

3.1
0.2

3.3

A loss of £0.1m arose on the disposal of Hitachi Capital Polska Sp. z 0.0., calculated as the proceeds of disposal
less the carrying amount of the subsidiary’s net assets and attributable goodwill. In addition, the Group released
£0.3m contingent consideration relating to the acquisition of Hitachi Capital Polska Sp. z o.0..in October 2014
resulting in overall profit on disposal of £0.2m which is included within other revenue (Note 5).

13 Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments have been disclosed in the Group and Company statement of financial position

as follows:

2018

Assets

Less than 1 year
1 to 2 years

21t0 5 years
Over S year

Total
Liabilities

Less than | year
1 to 2 years

2 to 5 years
Over 5 years

Total

Of Which,
Designated as fair value
hedges ’

Designated as cash flow
hedges :

Cross currency swap contracts

Interest
. rate
USD HKD Yen NZD  Other Total swap Total
£m . £m £fm - £m £m £m £m £m
6.0 4.7 2.1 ;- 4.7 17.5 0.5 18.0
2.4 - 5.5 - 6.7 14.6 1.8 16.4
3.8 - - - 1.3 5.1 4.4 9.5
12.2 47 16 - 127 372 67 439
0.2) - - - 2.5) 4 2.7) (0.6) (33)
R - - - (119  (119) 0.5 (12.4)
(13.6) @45  9.5) - (1.5 (9.1, (3.7 (329
- - - - (1.3) (1.3) (2.9) 4.2)
(13.8) (4.5) (9.5) - (17.2)  (45.0) 1.7 (52.7)
(1.6) 0.2 (1.9) - (4.5) (7.8) (1.0) (3.8)
- - - - (116  (11.6) 67 a13)
(1.6) 0.2 (1.9) - 7.1 3.8 4.7 8.5
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13 Dérivatiye Financial Instruments (continued)

Cross currency swap contracts

Interest
rate
) USD  HKD Yen NZD Other Total swap Total
2017 . . " £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets - -

. Less than 1 year 63.4 15.5 - 16.7 3.0 1.6 100.2 - 100.2
1 to 2 years 11.9 12.8 3.5 7 - 2.5 30.7 - . 30.7
2 to 5 years 16.2 - 8.0 - 4.7 28.9 - 28.9

"Over 5 year , - - - - - 10 1.0 0.2 1.2
Total \ . 91.5 28.3 -28.2 3.0. 9.8 160.8 0.2 161.0

" Liabilities : : A
Less than 1 year ‘ - - 09 - .19 (1.8) (1.5) . (13.3)
1 to 2 years - - - - (1.5) (1.5) (3.2) 4.7
2to 5 years - - - - - SR C ) N C3))
Over 5 years - - - - - - - -
Total _ - - 9.9) - (3.4) - (13.3) 5.4) (22.7)

91.5 28.3 18.3 3.0 6.4 147.5 %.2) 1383 '
Of Which,
Designated as fair value L
hedges - - - - 0.8) 0.7) (1.5)
Designaied as cash flow . ' .
hedges ' » 148.3 139.8

(8.5)

The hedged cash flows are expected to occur and affect Other Comprehensive Income in the periods ﬁp to July -
2026 (2017: July 2026) for cross: currency swaps and to June 2023 (2017: September 2021) for interest rate

swaps. The description of the hedges are covered in significant accounting policies notes 2.4(k) and 2.4(1)

A description of the risks being hedged for fair value and cash flow hedges is disclosed in n(;te 28.

2018 2017

£fm £fm

Loss on fair value hedging instruments ’ (15.9) 4.4)
Gain on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk in FV hedges 16.2 4.8
Total gain recognised in the income statement - +0.3 0.4
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14 Interest Bearing Borrowings

The Group provides a central treasury function that is responsible for all external funding activities. The
carrying values and weighted average effective interest rates of borrowings are as follows:

Group ' Company

2018 2018 2017 2017 2018 2018 2017 2017
£m % “£m % £m % £m Yo
Bank and group borrowings 1,468.1 1.3 1,6457 12 1,468.1 1.3 1,6003 1.2
Commercial Paper ) 217.6 0.5 2421 0.7 217.6 0.5 242.1 0.7

Funding from securitised ' . '
receivables . 400.0 1.0 300.0 0.9 400.0 1.0 3000 09
Medium term notes - . 2,067.9 1.2 11,4449 ° 14 2,0679 1.2 14449 14
Total 4,153.6 1.3 3,632.7 1.5 4,153.6 1.3 3,587.3 15

Bank overdrafts are répayable on demand and secured by the right of set-off against cash balances held. by
certain Group companies with the same bank (refer note 18). The average effective rate on overdraft balances
for the year was 1.50% (2017: 1.25%) and is based on the Bank of England’s official rate plus an agreed margin.

Other uncommitted borrowing facilities are available to the'Group from banks and other sources. -

The Group raises funding under its Euro Medium Term Note (“EMTN”) programme mainly for terms of one to
five years. Borrowings from this source are unsecured although they benefit from a guarantee from Hitachi
Capital Corporation.

Borrowings under the Group’s two commercial paper programmés -are typically raised for periods of between

one month and 364 days BorrOngs under these programmes are also -guaranteed by Hitachi Capital
~ Corporation.

Proceeds from the securitisation of certain receivables are at a floating rate of interest, typically fi xmg for a

period of between one and three months at each monthly interest payment date.

The Group utilises two securitisation facilities: under the first it sells consumer receivables to The Royal Bank
of Scotland plc, acting as trustee (‘Consumer Securitisation’). Under the second, receivables from Small to
Medium Enterprises are sold to Fleetbank Funding Limited. as part of the British Business Bank’s ‘Enable
Funding’ programme (‘SME Securitisation’) (see note 28). These assets are not derecognised from the financial
statements since the majority of the risks and rewards are retained by the Group. In both arrangements if the
facilities were, for whatever reason, to be run down, then the Group is entitled to receive the return of surplus
cash collections after fees, and principal and interest of the secured borrowings are repaid.
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14 Interest Bearing Borrowings (continued)

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

Group

Current Liabilities
On demand or within 1
year =

Non Current Liabilities‘
More than 1 year but less
than 2

More than 2 years but less
than 7

Fixed ~ Floating Total Fixed Floating Total
2018 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017
£m £fm £m £m £m £m
3285 1,063.5 13920 7711 6484 . 1,419.5
4522 1130 12252 314.1 674.1 988.2
877.7 658.7 1,536.4 708.3 516.7 1,225.0
13299 ‘14317, 27616 1,022.4 1,190.8 2,213.2
1,6584 2,495.2 4,153.6 1,839.2 3,632.7.

1,793.5

/

There were no defaults of either principal or interest and no unremediated breaches of loan agreement terms that
would permit the lender to demand accelerated payment on any loans payable during the reporting periods

ending March 2018 or 2017.

Company

Current Liabilities

On demand or within 1
year

Non Current Liabilities
More than | year but less
than2

More than 2 years but less
than 7 '

Floating

Fixed

Floating

Fixed Total "Total
2018 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017
£m £m £m £m £m £m
328.5 1,063.5 1,392.0 742.0 648.3 1,3_90.3
4522 773.0 1,225.2 297.9 674.1 972.0
877.7 . 658.7 1,536.4 ' 708.3 516.7 1,225.0
1,3299 1,431.7' 2,761.6 1,006.2 1,190.8 ' 2,197.0
2,495.2 4,153.6 1,748.2 3,587.3

1,658.4
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14 Interest Bearing Borrowings (continued)

An analysis of borrowings by currency is as follows:

Total financial liabilities

us PLN
Sterling ~ Euro Yen Dollar " Zloty Other Total
Group . £m £m - £m £m £m £m £m
31 March 2018 : 2,147.3 965.7° 339.0 387.4 0.4 313.8 4,153.6
31 March 2017 : i 2,035.8 507.3 287.1 . 472.3 46.0 284.2 3,632.7
. US PLN Total
Sterling Euro Yen Dollar Zloty Other 2017
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
31 March 2018 2,147.3 965.7 339.0 387.4 0.4 313.8 4,153.6
31 March 2017 . 2,035.8 507.3 287.1 472.3 0.6 284.2 3,587.3
15 Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Fair
Carrying amount Fair value Value
Hierarchy
) 2018 2017 - 2018 2017
Group: ‘ Note . £m £m £m £m
Financial assets measured at fair ‘
value: . .
Derivative financial instruments 13 439 161.0 439 161.0 2
Financial assets not measured at fair
value: .
Cash and cash equivalent 18 6.2 2.3 6.2 2.3 1
Trade Debtors C 421 43.7 42.1 43.7 3
Loans and receivables i1 4,092.5 3,381.8 4,127.3  3,416.0 3
Total financial assets 4,184.7 3,588.8 42195  3,623.0
Financial liabilities measured at fair
value: : . )
Derivative financial instruments i3 ’ . 52.7 22.7 52.7 22.7 2
Financial liabilities measured at fair
value: :
Bank overdraft .18 72 3.5 72 35 1
Trade creditors and accruals, including )
balances due to invoice financing
clients . ) 138.7 133.6 138.7 133.6 3
Interest bearing borrowings 14 4,153.6 3,632.7 4,176.9 3,658.8 3
4,352.2 3,792.5 4,375.5 3,818.6
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15 Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

) _ Fair
Carrying amount Fair value Value
Hierarchy

: - 2018 2017 2018 2017
Company: Note £m £m- £m £m
Financial assets measured at fair '
value:
Derivative financial instruments 13 . 439 161.0 43.9 161.0 2

* Financial assets not measured 5t fair

value: i ‘
Cash and cash equivalent 18 6.2 1.1 6.2 1.1 - 1
Trade Debtors . 421 . 415 42.1 41.5 3
Loans and receivables. . 11 " 4,092.5 3,372.6 4,127.3 3,406.8 3
Total financial assets 4,184.7 3,576.2 4.219.5 3,610.4
Financial liabilities measured at fair ‘
value: . A
Derivative financial instruments 13 52.7 22.7 52.7 227 ¢ 2
Financial liabilities measured at fair
value: : .
Bank overdraft ' i8 7.2 35 . 12 35 1
Trade creditors and accruals, including ' '
balances due to invoice financing : ~
clients . . 138.7 132.0 138.7 132.0 3
Interest bearing borrowings 14 4,153.6 3,587.3 4,176.9 3,613.4 3
Total financial liabilities 43522  3,7455 43755 37716
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15 Fair Value of Finaﬁcial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

* Level 1; .
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilitiés with standard terms and condmons and traded onan
active liquid market, determined by reference to quoted market prices.

e Level 2:

The fair value of derivatives in the disclosure above has been determined using discounted cash flow models
using observable market inputs in the form of yield curves in each relevant currency and spot foreign currency
exchange rates to convert-values to sterling. This excludes.any option derivatives, which have been valued using
option pricing models based on observable market inputs such as volatility, discount rates and foreign exchange
rates. The fair value of derivatives is further adjusted by taking account of both the Group’s counterparties and
its own credit spreads applied to cash flows owed to and from the Group. These credit spreads were derived
from observable market prices of credit default swaps and other market based credit spreads.

* Level 3:

a) The fair value of loans and receivables has been determined by using a model that uses as input the
observable market interest rate for the relevant tenor of each asset, and its change from the time of inception of
the asset to the statement of financial position date. Further adjustments to take account of customer credit risk
"uses unobservable inputs. :

- b) The fair value of own borrowings in the table above has been determined using discounted cash flow models
using observable market inputs in the form of yield curves in each relevant currency and spot foreign currency
exchange rates to convert.values to Sterling. Further adjustment to take account of the Group’s own credit risk
uses unobservable market inputs. ' ’

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3.during the year. There were also no changes in valuation
techniques during the year.

16 Inventories

Group Company
2018 C 2017 2018 2017
£m £m £m . £m
Motor vehicles for resale - 173 A 14.0 . 17.3 - 131
Vehicles not yet in leasing - : )
agreement 2.9 5.7 2.9 5.7
20.2 1197 202 1838
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17 Trade Receivables and Other Assets -

Group Company
2018 C2017 - 2018 2017
. £m . fm | £m £m
Trade debtors and prepayments - 55.9 '58.5 55.8 + 54.5
Other receivables ' 8.8 : 12.4 8.8 10.9
Total current trade and other )
receivables ’ 64.7 70.9 64.6 . 65.4

Trade debtors and prepayments principally comprise operating lease rentals receivable, which are non-interest
bearing and generally on 30 day terms. :

As at 31 March 2018, the trade debtor impairment provision was as follows:

Group Company
. £m £m

At 31 March 2016 ' ' : 0.4 ' -
Transfer of business from subsidiaries . - 0.4
At 31 March 2017 . 0.4 0.4
Amounts written off ' _ ' (0.6) 0.6)
Recoveries . .. “ 0.1 0.1
Charge to the income statement ' : . 0.9 0.9
At 31 March 2018. ‘ ‘ A 0.8 0.8

18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and overdrafts held by the. Group all have an original maturity of three months or less. The Group has no
cash equivalents. .

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the fol'lowing'at 31 March
2018:

Group . Company

' 2018 ' 2017 2018 2017
C ' £m £m . £m ) ’ £m
Cash at bank ‘ ) 6.2 . 23 6.2 1.1
Bank overdrafts A (1.2) - (3.5) (7.2) (3.3)
Cash and cash equivalents in ~ ' N
statement of cash flows ; . (1.0) (1.2) ‘ (1.0) (2.4)

In accordance with the security arrangements of liabilities as disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements, a
net bank overdraft of £7.2m (2017: £3.5m) is secured by cash as part of an interest offset arrangement between
some accounts held by the Group with HSBC and NatWest individually. Under the respective arrangements, in
a situation of default by the Group, HSBC and NatWest may apply credit bahk balances to satisfy bank balances
in deficit held by the Group with them respectively.
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19 Share capital

The Company has one class of ordinary shares, which carry no right to fixed income. The share capital is
analysed below.

' ‘ 2018 " 2017
‘ ' £m No. £m _ No.
Issued and fully paid share capital - . )
110.7 442,674,523 1107 442,674,523

Ordinary shares

20 Dividends Paid and Proposed

The directors are proposing a final dividend of approximately 6.8p (2017: nil) pei share totallfng £30.0m (2017:
nil). This dividend has not been accrued in the statement of financial position.

21 Other provisions - grohp and company

{ \

Onerous Lease

Customer and - Other.
claims dilapidations _provisions, Total
: . . £m £m . £fm - £m.
At 1 April 2016 . 225 .10 ' ‘ - 23.5
Additional provisions o 4.8 02 05 . 55
Increase / (decrease) through : ) :
business combinations , 03 0.3 . 0.6 1.2
Provisions used . ' : (4.6) 0.3) 0.4) (5.3)
Unused provision reversed " (5.1) - . to. (5.1)
At 31 March 2017 179 ~ 1.2 . 0.7 . 19.8
Non-current liabilities . 0.5 - 0.9 . - 1.4

Current liabilities ‘ 174 -~ 03 0.7 18.4
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21' Other provisions - group and company (continuéd)

Onerous lease

Customer . and Other
© claims dilapidations provisions Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2017 . . 17.9 1.2 “0.7 19.8
Additional provisions ) 8.6 0.1 . 0.1 8.8.
Provisions used : : ’ 1.7) ) - ' (0.6) (2:3)
Unused provision reversed (5.2) (0.2) . - (5.4)
At 31 March.2018 19.6 . 1.1 0.2 20.9
Non-current liabilities ' 0.5 0.9 - 1.4
Current liabilities o 9.1 0.2 - 0.2 19.5

Customer Claims . .

In certain situations, the Group is jointly and severally liable to customers who have claims against suppliers for
misrepresentation or breach of contract, in respect of certain types of regulated agreements. This risk is
minimised by the Group through regular due diligence reviews of the suppliers through which financed products
are sold and termination of business where there is higher potential risk of default recognised. The provision is
recognised based on current information and key assumptions regarding the expected level of claims relating to
suppliers experiencing difficulties and historical costs incurred to date in reéspect of claims. The key assumptions
take into account the number of potential claimants, the amounts financed and any other compensation claim as
a result of the suppliers failing to satisfy its obligation. These claims have been classified as current which is
consistent with our legal obligations for current and prior year presentation. The Group also recognises customer
redress provision for legal or regulatory proceedings..

Onerous Lease and Dilapidations
The Group holds dilapidation provisions relating to its leased sites at Staines, Leeds and Newbury. The
provision represents an estimate of the work required to bring it back to its original state at the end of the
contract. The estimated outflow of the non-current element of this provision is expected to be: less than one year
£0.2m (2017: £0.3m), over 1 year but less than 10 years £0.6m (2017: £0.6) and over 10 years £0.3m (2017:
£0.3m). : .

\ N

22 Reserves

Group
The changes to each component of equity resulting from items of other comprehensive income for the current
year were as follows: ’

Other reserves

2018 ' : £m
Gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges (net) . 12.0
Foreign currency translation gains/(losses) : o 0.2)
Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligatiohs 3.6

15.4
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22 Reserves (contlnued)

- The changes to each component of equity resultmg from items of other comprehenswe income for the prior year
‘were as follows

Other reserves

2017 ' | A : £m
Gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges (net) , 3.2
Foreign currency translation gains/(losses) - ' 0.1)
Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations ' (5.8)
' ' .27,
Company ‘
The changes to each component of equrty resultmg from items of other comprehensrve income for the current
year were as follows: , - s
. k . ) Other reserves

2018 ) _ . ‘ ' : . £m
Gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges (net) : ) 12.1
Foreign currency translation gains/(losses)’ ‘ . 0.2) -
Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations ] . - 3.6

' o 15.5

The changes to each component of equity resulting from items of other comprehensive income for the prior year
were as follows: .

) : R . Other reserves
2017 ) s £m

Gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges (net) : ' 3.1
.- . \
Remeasurements of post employment l)eneﬁt obligations : . (5.9).
‘ (2.7)

23 Ohligations under leases and hire purchase contracts

Lessee Activities
The following’ dlsclosures relate to the actlvmes of the Group and the Company where they act as, lessee

Group
Operating leases

The total future value of minimum lease payments is as follows:.

2018 2017

£m £m
Within one year , : 1.1 1.2
In two to five years g . : 48 4.8
In over five years o L ’ 5.4 ' 6.3

11.3 12.3
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23 Obligations under leases and hire pdrchase contracts (continued)

The amount of non- cancellable operating lease payments recognised as an expense durmg the year was £1.9m
(2017 - £1. 9m)

Company
Operating leases

The total future value of minimum lease payments is as follows: )
' ' ' 2018 2017

. £m £m
Within one year . : _ 1.1 ) 1.2
"In two to five years A ' 4.8 4.8
In over five years . . 5.4 B 6.3
11.3 ‘ 12.3

The amount of non-cancellable operating lease payments recogmsed as an expense durmg the year was £I 9m
(2017 - £1.8m)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office propertles and related
office equipment. Leases are negotiated for a term of three to fifteen years.

Lessor Activities
.. The Group, through Vehicle Solutions and Business Finance, acts as a lessor of vehicles and other assets, the
leases for which are generally for terms between three and five years. Operating lease rental income on vehicles
and other assets forms a significant part of the Group s business and during the year amounted to £245.5m
(2017: £239.7m).

Operating leases as a lessor

Future minimum lease rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leasés at year end.

2018 2017

. A , ) £m ' £m
Within 1 year - 186.3 11953
More than 1 year but less than 5 years ' 291.8 T 2543
.Over 5 years : , . ' A 18.7 : 15.4
‘ 496.8 465.0
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24 Retirement Benefit Pension Schemes

Defined contribution pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme for all qualifying employees. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in'an independently administered-fund.,

The total cost charged as an Administrative expense to the consolidated income statement of £2.5m (2017 -
£2.1m) represents contributions payable to the scheme at rates specified in the rules of the scheme. There were
no unpaid contributions at either 31 March 2018 or 31 March 2017.

Defined benefit pension schemes

The Group operates a funded pension scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable earnings, which has
been closed to employees joining since 2002. The scheme is set up under a trust, with the assets held separately
from the Group and managed by an independent set of trustees. The trustees are required by law-to act in the
best interests of the scheme participants and are responsible for setting the scheme’s investment-and governance
policies and paying benefits. The 'scheme is approved by HMRC for tax purposes. No other post-retlrement
benefits are provided.

Under the UK’s pension plan funding requirements, the trustees and tlie Group together agree a funding strategy
and contribution schedule for the scheme every three years., ‘

As with the vast majority of similar arrangements, the Group ultimately underwrites the risks relating to the
scheme. These risks include investment risks and demographic risks, such as the risk of members living longer
than expected. The scheme holds a significant proportion of its assets in equity, corporate and government
bonds, property and diversified growth fund investments. Strong future returns on these assets would be
expected to reduce the Group’s future cash contributions (and vice versa) If the contributions currently agreed
are insufficient to pay the benefits due, the Group will need to make further contributions to the scheme. The
Group is not exposed to any unusual, entity specific or plan specific risks.

The valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out as at 31 March 2018 by Lane
Clark & Peacock LLP, an independent qualified actuary, the calculations for which were based on the
membership data used for the scheme’s latest formal actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2016 projected to the
accounting date. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, the related current service cost and past
servxce cost were measured using the projected unit credit method.

On 31 January 2018, the Group decided to close the scheme to future accrual with effect from 5 April 2018,
with active members becoming deferred members from that date. The effect of the closure has been-recognised
as a curtailment gain of £0.5m in the income statement. -

Contributions payable to the pension scheme at the end of the year are £nil (2017 - £nil).

The expected contributions to the plan for the next reporting period are £0.5m.

The scheme was most recently valued on 31 March 2016. The Group made a £4.2m contribution payment in
- October 2016 to remove the deficit. '

IFRIC 14 has no impact on the figures in this note because the Company has an uncondmonal right to a refund
of any surplus in the scheme once the last member’s liabilities have been settled.
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24 Retirement Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)

Reconciliation of scheme assets and liabilities to assets and liabilities recognised
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows: '
' 2018 - 2017

. £fm £m
Fair value of scheme assets . - 576 57.0
- Present value of scheme liabilities (54.2) (58.3)
‘Defined benefit pension scheme surplus/(deficit) ) 34 l (13)
‘Scheme assets . . :
Changes in the fair value of scheme asSets are as follows:
' 2018 2017
. . fm £m
Fair value at start of year . 57.0 452
- Interest income . o 1.5 ‘ 1.7
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest ' : .
income/(expense) 1.0 6.1
" Employer contributions ’ : 0.5 4.7
Contributions by scheme participants ' : 01 0.1
Benefits pa}d 2.2) 0.5)
Administrative expenses paid A : (0.3) (0.3)
Fair value at end of year . : . 57.6 57.0
Analysis of assets
The major categories of scheme assets are as follows: !
2018 2017
. £m £m
Equity instruments : : : : ’ ©18.8 1 20.0
Debt instruments . 5.6 ‘ 5.6
Real estate - L 75 6.7
Government bonds o 13.4 ' 13.1
Net-current assets . ) . 0.2 . (0.1)
Diversified growth fund ' 12.1 11.7
57.6 57.0
Actual return on scheme's assets
2018 : 2017 .
£m £m
Actual return on scheme assets : . ' 2.5 7.8
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24 Retirement Benqﬁt Pension Schemes (continued)

The scheme’s assets are invested in a diversified range of asset classes. As at 31 March 2018 the target
allocation was to .invest 35% of the scheme’s assets in liability matching assets and 65% in a return-seeking
portfolio. The scheme’s trustees plan to increase the proportion invested in liability matchmg assets linearly
until the scheme’s assets are 100% invested in liability matching assets in 2066.

The scheme does not invest directly in property occupied by-the Group or in financial securities issued by the
Group. Each of the asset classes have prices quoted in an active market except for the diversified growth fund.
Diversified growth funds invest in a range of underlying asset classes and derivatives: typically equities, bonds
(including high yield and emerging market debt), hedge funds, commodities, infrastructure and property, and
vary their allocations to these markets tactically. They aim to achieve long term returns that are broadly in line
with long term equity returns, but with lower volatility and an element of capital preservation.

Scheme liabilities

Changes in the present value of scheme liabilities are és follows:

2018 2017
. £m £m
Present value at start of year . i : 583 43.5
Current service cost / © 05 ' - 0.3
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic
assumptions : a7 0.7)
. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions .1 C14.1
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments 0.3 - (0.1)
Interest cost 1.5 - 1.6
Benefits paid 2.2) (0.5)
Contributions by scheme participants 0.1 0.1
Effect of curtailments . (0.5) -
Present value atend of year = ‘ 54.2 383

Principal actuarial assumptions

The significant actuarial assumptions used to determine the present value of the defined benef t obllgatlon at the
statement of financial position date are as follows:

2018 2017

: % %
Retail price inflation . . . 32 ' - 32
Consumer price inflation ‘ 2.1 2.1
Discount rate - - ) ; 2.7 2.6
General salary increases . 32 32
Pension ing:réases in payment (5% or RPI if less) : 3.0 3.1
Pension increases in payment (3% or CPl if less) ’ . , 2.1. 2.1
Pension increases in payment (2.5% or RPI if less) o 1.9 1.9
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24 Retirement.Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)

Post retirement mortality assumptions

Current UK pensioners at retirement age - male
Current UK pensioners at retirement age - female
Future UK pensioners at retirement age - male
Future UK pensioners at retirement age - female.

Amounts recoghised in the income statement

~

Amounts recognised in operating profit
Current service cost

Gains on curtailments

Administrative expenses paid

Recognised in arriving at operating prbﬁt

Amounts recognised in finance income or costs
Net interest

Total recognised in the income statement

A

Amounts taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic
assumptions -

Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest
income/(expense)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Sensitivity analysis

A sensitivity analysis for the principal assumptions used to measure scheme liabilities is set out below:
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The total amount recognised in the income statement has been included in Administrative expenses. *

2018 2017
Years Years
22.7 22.9
24.7 25.0
24.1 24.6
26.2 26.9
2018 2017
" £m £m
0.5 0.3
(0.5) -
0.3 0.3
0.3 0.6
- (0.1)
- 0.3 0.5
2018 2017
£m £m
1.7 0.7
2.1 (14.1)
(0.3) 0.1
1.0 ‘6.1
4.5 (7.2)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2018 (continued)

24 Retiremént Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)

2018 - - 2017

] -0.1% -0.1%
~Adjustment to discount rate £m £m
Present value of total obligation 1.2 1.3
Fair value of scheme assets , » 0.4 ©04
Net Retirement benefit asset / obligations 08 0.9

2018 2017 -

- +0.1% +0.1%
Adjustment to rate of inflation . . - £m - £m
Present value of total obligation . . 1.1 ' 1.2
Fair value of scheme assets . 0.4 0.3
Net Retirement benefit asset / obligations ' 0.7 09

2018 2017

+1 Year +1 Year
Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption . £m £m -
Present value of total obligation : . ' 22 2.4
Net Retirement benefit asset / obligations 2.2 24
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24 Retirement Benefit Pension Schemes (confinued)

1If the assumption were decreased rather than increased, then the impact would have the opposite sign and
broadly be of the same magnitude. Each assumption has been varied individually and a combination of changes
in assumptions could produce a different result. For consistency, the value of the scheme’s holding of bonds has
been varied consistently with the change in the discount rate and inflation assumptions.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obllgatlon is 24 years (2017: 24 years), and most of the -
benefit payments are linked to future levels of inflation. )

25 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables - current .

Balances due to invoice
financing clients

Rentals in advance and deferred
maintenance - current -

TFrade creditors and accruals
Other creditors

 Company

Trade and other payables - non cﬁrrent

Rentals in advance and deferred
maintenance - non current

Retailer liability

Group
2018 2017 . 2018 2017
£m £ £m ‘ ~ £m
51.5 - 48.9 . 515 489
37.4 18.5 374 18.5
65.4 "64.0 67.1 . 63.5
21.6 27.9 21.4 28.3
175.9 159.3 177.4 159.2
- Group Company v
2018 2017 2018 2017
£m £m £m £m
9.7 31.9 9.7 31.9
65.9 62.8 65.9 - 62.8
75.6 94.7 75.6 94.7
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26 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Group

Interest bearing loans and
borrowings - current

Interest bearing loans and
borrowings - non current

Company

Interest bearing loans and

borrowings - current
Interest bearing loans and

borrowings - non current

Foreign . ‘
At1 April Financing. exchange Fairvalue At31 March
2017 cash flows movements changes 2018
£m £m . £m £m £m
1,419.5 60.8 (90.1) 1.8 1,392.0
2,213.2 683.7 (117.4) (17.9) 2,761.6
3,632.7 744.5 (207.5) (16.1) 4,153:6

Foreign

At1 April Financing  exchange Fair value - At 31 March
2017 cash flows movements changes 2018
£m £m £m £m £m
- 1,390.3 90.1 ©(90.2) 1.8 1,392.0
- 2,197.0 637.9 (55.4) (17.9) 2,761.6
3,587.3 (16.1) 4,153.6

728.0 (145.6)
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27 Related Party Disclosures
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related pames have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not dlSClOSCd in this note.

During the year Group companies entered into the following transactions with related Hitachi compames who
are not members of the Group: . .

27.1 Transactions with immediate parent undertakings

The Group entered into transactions with its immediate parent company, Hitachi Capital Corporation. The
following tables show outstanding amounts and corresponding income and expenses recognised during the year. -

2018 2017
£m ) £m
Payments for administration charges HCC 5.9 6.1
Receipts for administration charges HCC ' . ‘ - ‘ 1.6
2018 2017
, ) £m £m

Amounts owed to Hitachi Capital Corporation : 29 ' 3.3
Amounts owed by Hitachi Capital Corporation . 0.2 1.1

27.2 Transactions with other related parties

The Group entered into transactions with Hitachitcompanies that have significant influence over it. The
following tables show outstanding amounts and corresponding income and expenses recognised during the year.

v

2018 2017
£m £m

Interest paid to Hitachi companies ) ) : - 0.6
Payments for administration charges to Hitachi companies - 05 o 0.7
Interest paid to Mitsubishi companies ' 15.0 : -
Interest received from Mitsubishi companies , Lo : 1.0
Receipts for administration charges from Hitachi companies 0.3 : 0.2
Interest income from Hitachi companies ' 0.7 ' ) 0.1
Lease income from Hitachi companies .o 0.3 : 0.3
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27 Related Party Disclosures (continued)

- ' '- 2018 2017

: £m £m
Amounts due to Hitachi companies ! 0.1 -
Amounts due to Mitsubishi companies in respect of borrowings 1,102.8 -
Accrued interest expense owed to Mitsubishi companies , 2.0 -
Amounts due from Hitachi companies ' ' 62.6 19.8
Amounts due from Hitachi companies in respect of leases 0.6 0.6

“Remuneration of Key Management Personnel :

2018 2017

. i £m £m
Salaries and other short term employee benefits / : 2.6 2.8
Post-employment benefits ‘ . ’ ’ ' 0.1 0.1
"Other long-term benefits A 0.6 0.7
' 33 3.6

The aggregate amount of remuneratlon paid to the Directors was £1.3m (2017 £1.2m). The highest paid

Director's remuneration in the year was £0.9m (201 7. £0.7m).

No directors (2017: nil) were accruing retirement benefits in respect of quahfymg services under a defined

beneﬁt scheme-or a money purchase scheme.

Other transactions with directors

A director’s loan was taken out by Guy. Munnoch and commenced on 21 October 2017 at an interest rate of 0%.

The total amount of credit was £7,833.70 and was settled in full prior to 31 March 2018.
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28 Financial risk management objective and policies

Group

Credit risk and impairment .
The Group’s principal financial assets are cash and bank balances, loans and receivables, trade and other
receivables, and derivative financial instruments. :

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributablé to its loans and receivables. The amounts presented in the
statement of financial position are net of allowances for impairment losses. The gross amounts of loans and
receivables represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk and are set out in note 11. The Group also
bears credit risk associated with the rental payments due from customers related to operating lease assets, the
outstanding portion of which is included within trade receivables set out in note 17.

The Group has guaranteed £4.4m (2017: £4.0m) of lease payments due from businesses in France, Italy, Poland,
Portugal, Spain, Switzerland and Turkey to third party lessors and receives a fee for these services. In addition,
the Company has guaranteed £ml (2017 £45.4m) of bank borrowings to the subsidiary Hitachi Capital Polska
sp zoo.

The Group has a Credit Risk Committee (“CRC”) that pfovides a kéy element of oversight to the credit approval
and portfolio risk management functions within the Group’s business units. The CRC maintains the Group’s risk
appetite and oversees the adherence of individual business units to their respective risk appetite policies.

Credit risk is managed to minimise losses, maximise recoveries and prevent fraud. Credit policy requires
consideration to be given to the financial and credit status of the customer, dealer, supplier and/or vendor
(including retailers and brokers), the quality of any collateral taken or of the asset being financed and the terms
and conditions which are applled to the financing. .

Procedures are maintained that stipulate such factors as maximum loan amounts and funding- periods,
requirements for down payments or deposits, deferral periods and authorisation limits. Customer scorecards are -
extensively used throughout the retail and small-ticket commercial businesses. Detailed credit files are
maintained for larger commercial transactions and significant relationships. Material -changes to credit risk
appetite, and significant facility limits and extensions of credit typically require director or senior executive
approval. The Group’s credit risk exposures are spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.

Where the exposure to any one counterparty exceeds certain levels, annual reviews are performed to ensure that
the credit quality has not deteriorated. .

Credit risk arising from balances held with banks and financial institutions is managed by Group Tréasury in
accordance with the Group’s counterparty risk management policy outlined below. Investments of surplus funds
are made only with approved counterparties.

The credit risk exposure from any cash deposits and derivative financial instruments is constantly measured by
counterparty and monitored relative to individual counterparty limits in accordance with the Board approved
Treasury policy. Counterparties are selected and assessed on their prospects for long term stability of credit
rating for which the Group seeks a minimum long term credit rating by Standard & Poor’s of at least ‘A-’ (and a
short term rating of ‘A-1’). Swap counterparty creditworthiness ‘is also monitored on a regular basis using any
other available indicators such as standard 5 year credit default swap prices. ’
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28 Financial risk management objective and policies (continued)

The Group has exposure to a limited number of bahking counterparties through depositing cash in time deposits.
Cash balances and deposits by the Group are generally maintained at nil or insignificant levels. When HCUK
has cash to deposit, these deposits are split between three to four different UK and Polish regulated banks with a

minimum credit rating of ‘BBB+". -

The Group does not have any financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, and therefore
there has been no revaluation of financial liabilities for own credit risk. This includes financial liabilities in
hedge relationships as the Group does not hedge credit risk. The changes in the fair value of financial liabilities
recognised in the income statement are principally due to changes in'market foreign exchange rates and mterest
rates for those instruments in designated hedge. relatlonshlps

Credit Quality

Gross loans and receivables

and trade debtors:

Neither past due nor impaired:

Very low risk
Low risk

" Moderate risk
High Risk
Ungraded

Total

Past due not impaired:
<30 days

31-60 days

61-90 days

91-365 days.

>365 days

Total

Individually impaired: -
Retail
Commercial

Total
Total

Gross Ibans and receivables
“Trade Debtors

Company

Group -
2018 2017 ‘2018 2017 .
£m £m £m £m

2,327.3 1,924.0 2,327.3 1,928.9
1,071.6 937.0 - 1,071.6 921.0
665.9 522.1: 665.9 522.1
241.6 205.3 241.6 205.3
187.8 122.3 187.8 122.3
4,494.2 3,710.7 4,494.2 3,699.6
6.1 4.6 6.1 46 -
25.1 244 25.1 24.3
6.0 5.1 6.0 5.1
12.1 9.1 12.1 9.1
1.4 2.1 1.4 2.1
50.7 453 -50.7 45.2
22.7 - 21.9 22.7 21.9
84.6 93.2 84.6 93.1
107.3 115.1 ° 107.3 115.0
4,652.2 3,871.1 4,652.2 3,859.8
4,609.3 3,827.0 4,609.3 3,817.8
42.9 44.1 42.9 42.0
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28 Financial risk' management objective and policies (continued)

Categories of credit risk quality are determined at an agreement or facility level using both internal risk
management inputs and external inputs from credit risk rating agencies and bureaux. The inputs used are
specific to the business unit in which the exposure exists, but common categories of credit risk have been
determined to monitor portfolio credit quality across the Group. The categorles are based prlmarlly on aligning
estimates of probability of default but also on management judgement.

Those categories that are 'ungraded’ have not been specifically rated by the business for various reasons such as
a lack of relevant or comparable information, or the fact that they are short term in nature and are perceived to
be low in inherent risk - .

‘Individually impaired’ leases and loans inciude agreements that are performing as agreed and are not past due,
but where regular re-scoring or other review of 'the obligor has detected an apparent increase in the risk of
default when compared to the basis on which the extension of credit was originally underwritten, resulting in an
impairment provision to be applied. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying_
value of each class of financial assets disclosed in note 11.

Collateral :

The Group maintains policies setting out acceptable collateral and other criteria to be considered when
reviewing a loan application. The decision as to, whether or not collateral is required will be based upon the
nature of the transaction and the credit worthiness of the customer. The provision of collateral will not
necessarily determine the outcome of a credit application. The fundamental business proposition must evidence
the ability of the obligor to generate funds from normal income or: business sources to repay debt. The extent to
which collateral values are actively managed or monitored will depend on the credit quality and' other
circumstances of the obligor.

Although lending decisions are primarily based on expected cash flows and debt service abilfty, any collateral
provided may influence the pricing and other terms of a loan or facility granted; this may have a financial
impact on the amount of net interest income recognised and on internal estimates of loss given default that
contributes to the determination of asset quality. The Group believes that this approach is appropriate. The value
_ of collateral is reassessed if there is observable evidence of distress of the obligor. Unimpaired lending,
including any associated collateral, is managed on a customer by customer basis rather than a portfolio basis.

A general description.of collateral held as securlty in respect of loans and receivables in each business unit is
provided below

~

(a) Consumer Finance .
Most lending is unsecured and therefore no collateral is held. However, for certain retailers, a portion of the cash
flows financed are deferred and held by the Group to cover possible future credit losses, see note 2.4(j). At the
year end 31 March 2018 deferred cash flows amounted to £65.9m (2017: £57.7m), against related gross loans
and receivables of £2,005.2m (2017: £1,937.4m). There was no such deferred cash collateral held against gross
loans- and receivables amouhtipg to £1,238.9m (2017: £717.5m). Of the total gross loans and receivables,
£22.8m was impaired at the year-end (2017: £21.9m).
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28 Financial risk management objective and policies (continued)

(b) Vehicle Solutions -

Credit facilities are quantified and established for business customers based on the gross value of receivables
calculated to be invoiced over the life of the lease contract or fleet management facility. Vehicle Solutions had
gross loans and receivables outstanding amounting to £16.9m (2017: £14.0m), which related to finance leases.
Payments due from customers under operating leases are included under trade receivables. The facilities and any
customer exposures thereunder are secured on the passenger car and commercial vehicles leased to the’
customers under the-contracts.

(c) Business Finance

Lending decisions for asset finance transactions are primarily based on an obligor’s ability to repay the debt
from normal business operations rather than reliance on the disposal of any security provided. Nevertheless, the
original cost and expected collateral values of financed assets are rigorously assessed at the time of loan
origination in line with the credit risk policy above. Assets considered eligible for financing include but are not
limited to vehicles, plant, manufacturing equipment, agricultural machinery and other moveable fixed assets.
Collateral values are revisited after origination in the event of changes in the performance of the loans, e.g.
customer default, or for significant customer exposures, at the time of annual review or facility renewals.

Certain extensions of credit within the Business Finance unit are made under block discounting agreements, the
collateral for which consists of receivables under loans and leases originated by the borrower, which are sold to
the Company in return for the advance. Of the total gross loans and receivables, £107.5m (2017: £96.3m) related
to block discounting agreements. Collateral coverage for block discounting agreements is verified regularly by
an mternal field audit team.

Of the total gross loans and receivables, held by Business Finance, £83.3m was impaired (2017: £§2.4m). of
this amount, £79.8m (2017: £89.4m) was performing as agreed and not past due.

(d) Invoice Finance

Credit facilities are established by reference to the expected levels of drawings made by clients agamst the value
of invoices assigned. The net loans and receivables for invoice finance, of £124.2m (2017: £74.5m) are
primarily collateralised by trade receivables purchased from factoring clients which had a gross value of
£175.6m (2017: £123.4m), and, in certain cases, by directors’ or principals’ personal guarantees and/or
- indemnities as additional security for shortfalls on collect outs due .to disputes or breach of contract for which
the guarantor is liable. Clients are subject to a rigorous programme of continuous verifications, rewews and
audits.
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quuldlty Risk and Funding Management

Liquidity risk is managed by the Treasury Commlttee and reviewed regularly. The Group’s objective is to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding, flexibility and cost through the use of borrowings with a
range of maturities. The term of each borrowing is determined by considering the market conditions of each of
the Group’s debt instruments, funding cost and correlation with the Group’s receivables. Included under funding
sources below, is a list of undrawn facilities that the Group has at its disposal. In addition, the Group has
uncommitted money market and overdraft facilities to provide short term financing.

The table below summarises the gross contractual maturity profile of the Group’s fi nancial liabilities. All
derivatives used for hedging purposes ‘are shown by maturity, based on their .contractual undiscounted
repayment obhgatlons :

*
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At 31 March 2018

Non derivative financial
liabilities:

Foreign currency
denominated borrowings
Sterling borrowings
Securitisation

Trade payables

Financial Guarantees

Derivative financial
liabilities:

Foreign currency receipts
relating to cross currency
swaps

Sterling payment relating
to interest rate swaps

Sterling receipts relating to
interest rate swaps

Sterling payments relating
to Cross currency swaps

At 31 March 2017

Non derivative financial’
liabilities:

Foreign currency

" denominated borrowings
- Sterling borrowings
Securitisation

Trade payables

Financial Guarantees

<lyr 1-2yrs 2-3yrs 3-4yrs 4s yrs 5-6yrs . >6yrs Total
£m £m "~ £m £m £m £m £m £m
(580.5) (749.8) (421.7) (201.6) (70.2) (10.9) (38.7) (2,073.4)
(662.9) (370.2) (325.8) (197.6) (93.6)- (150.8) (10.4) (1,811.3)
- (198.2) (143.8) (52.7) (12.1) 3.2) 0.6) 0.1) (410.7)
(175.8) - - . - . - (175.8)
(4.4) - " . - - - (4.9)
(1,621.8) (1,263.8) (800.2) (411.3) (167.0) (162.3) _(49.2) (4,475.6)
(327.8). (749.4) (421.7) (201.6) (702)  (109)  (38.7) (1,820.3)
1.9 1.7 1.8 1.4 1.1 0.2 - 8.1
20  (0) (1.6  (0.3) - - - (6.9)
315.2 746.8 430.0 205.3 ©75.6 10.8 39.1 1,8228
(12.7) . (3.9) 8.5 4.8 6.5 0.1 0.4 © 3.7
(9973) (3382) (155.8) (39.0) (71.7)  (1.0)  (34.0) (1.637.0)
(55.6) (237.6) (596.7) (354.9) (251.4) (194.9) (101.8) (1,792.9)
(1837)  (77.2) (29.8) (10.1) (3.5  (0.6)  (0.1) (305.0)
(159.3) - - - - - - (159.3)
2.3) ; . . ; ; - @3)
(1,398.2) (653.0) (782.3) (404.0) (326.6) (196.5) (135.9) (3,896.5)
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<lyr 1-2 &rs 2-3yrs -3-4yrs . 4-5 yrs 5-6yrs >6yrs Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Derivative financial V
- liabilities:

Foreign currency receipts
relating to cross currency . .
swaps ) (725.6) (326.5) (151.4) 39.0) (71.7) (1.0) (34.0) (1,349.2)
Sterling payment relating : : '
to interest rate swaps 5.4 2.1 1.1 0.7 0.6 T 0.6 0.1 10.6
Sterling receipts relating to R
interest rate swaps - (0.8) (0.6) 0.3) - - - - (1.7)
Sterling payments relating
to cross currency swaps 631.2 295.7 131.9 - 30.2 63.9 0.5 299 1,183.3

(89.8) (293) (187) = (81 (12 0.1 (4.0) (157.0)

The Group has a central treasury function which provides finance for the Group’s operations and manages
treasury 'risks in accordance with policies approved by the Board and Treasury Committee. The Treasury
Committee consists of the CEO, the Finance Director and the Group Treasurer. The major risks to the Group are
liquidity, movement in foreign exchange rates, interest rate movements and counterparty credit risk.

The Group’s principal sources of funding are European medium term notes, a securitisation programme, two
commercial paper programmes, uncommitted bank facilities and a certain amount of borrowings from the
Hitachi Limited Group of companies. Rate risks on these fundmg sources are managed using derivative
financial instruments.

The Group accesses a variety of markets to raise finance and issues both fixed and floating rate debt in a number
of different currencies. All foreign currency borrowings are swapped into Sterling upon issuance to either
floating interest rate linked to sterling LIBOR or at a fixed rate in sterling. The exception being, foreign
currency borrowings used to fund foreign currency assets.

All interest bearing borrowings are subject to risk management in accordance with the Group’s risk management
policies on interest rate risk management. As a result, a certain proportion of the ﬂoatmg rate borrowings will be
fixed by entering into Sterling interest rate swaps.

Funding Sources

The Group has a number of funding options and regularly reviews altematlve sources of financing. In selecting
the most appropriate source of funding at any point in time, factors such as market conditions, interest rate
- levels, liquidity and the profile of the assets being funded are considered.

The Group’s core funding programmes and facilities are as follows:
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Amount Capacity . Amount Capacity

drawn  available drawn  available

! ' : 2018 2018 2017 2017

. £m % £m : %

European Medium term note’ ) 2,067.8 27 1,445.4 55
Européan commercial paper programme 169.4 52 . 85.3 73

Belgian domestic commercial paper programme 48.2 78 156.9 26
Commited securisation programme . 399.7 299.9 -

Uncommited Short Term facilities from relationship bank 35.4 89. 55.6 . 78

Uncommited LongTerm facilities from relationship bank - 1,433.1 10 1,384.7 15
Syndicated Loans T - ’ - 159.6 -
Other loans from banks : - - 453 -
Total Borrowings : o 4,153.6 85 3,632.7. 65

The European medium term note programme and both commercial paper programmes are supported by a
guarantee from Hitachi Capital Corporation and consequently, are rated ‘A-/A2‘ by Standard & Poor’s.

The uncommitted facilities from relationship banks consist of unsecured short term money market and overdraft
facilities, drawings under these facilities are generally for periods of between one day and three months.

<

Market risk ) ) -

_ Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Financial instruments affected by market price risk include loans and receivables,
interest bearing borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

The Group’s particular activities expose it to the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and sterling
interest rates. .

Interest rate risk

Most of the-Group’s assets are at a fixed rate of interest so there is a risk of financial loss if the actual funding
cost for these assets rises above the rate at which they were priced when originated. This risk is managed by the
use of interest rate derivative financial instruments, specifically interest rate swaps. Interest rate exposure is
managed by duration, matching the fixed rate receivables and operating lease portfolio against the combjnation
of fixed rate debt and the interest rate derivatives portfolio.

Borrowings arranged at fixed interest rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk and those arranged at
floating rates have cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group’s policy is to hedge its exposure to variations in sterling interest rates. The degree to whlch
borrowings are rate fixed, as compared to the size of the Group’s underlymg fixed rate assets, is expressed asa
target ratio (calculated using interest rate sensitivity analysis on the assets and liabilities) which is set by the
Treasury Committee and reported to the Board on a monthly basis and is generally within a range of between
60% and 100%. The maturity profile of fixed borrowings versus assets is reviewed at least monthly to monitor
compliance to the set policy target. :
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Foreign exchange risk

This'is the risk that the value of the Group's foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are adversely
impacted by changes in exchange rates. The Group’s currency risk mainly arises from foreign currency
borrowings. The carrying amount of the Group’s forelgn currency denommated monetary liabilities at the
reporting date is set out in note 14.

The Group policy is to eliminate all foreign currency risk on borrowings by entering into Cross currency swaps
which convert non-sterling obligations under the debt issuance into sterling obligations. Currency debt raised
under the medium ‘term .note and commercial paper programmes are 100% hedged at the time of drawdown
unless foreign currency proceeds are required to fund foreign currency denominated assets. Currency rate risk
will therefore only arise in the unlikely event of a swap counterparty defaulting on its non-sterling obligations.
As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 all currency exposures on non- sterlmg debt were 100% hedged. This
risk is also monitored monthly. .
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Market Risk Mitigation

The Group enters into a variety of derivative fmancnal instruments to manage its exposure to these risks,
including;

+ Interest rate swaps to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates, and

« Cross currency swaps and short term FX swaps to mitigate the cxchange rate l'lSk arising on issuance of debt in .
foreign currency. .

Interest Rate Swap Contracts

Under interest rate swap (IRS) contracts, the Group agrees to pay or receive the difference between variable and
fixed interest rates calculated on an agreed notional principal amount. Such contracts allow the Group to
mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the cash flows of issued variable rate debt held and to a lesser
extent the fair value of fixed rate debt held. The fair value of IRSs at the year-end have been determined by
discounting the future cash flows for each contract using the yield curve as at the end of the year and the credit
risk inherent in the contract.

Interest swaps settle on a monthly, quarterly or semi-annual basis and use LIBOR reference rates on the floating
side of the swap. The Group settles on the difference between the fixed and floating interest rate on a'net basis
and, therefore, the Group recogmses net derwatlve assets and liabilities based on overall exposure to individual
counterpames

Where possible, floating to fixed IRSs are designated for accounting purposes as cash flow hedges in order to
reduce the variability of charges to the Group’s income statement. In some cases, although the IRSs
economically hedge the Group’s cash flow exposure they cannot be designated as cash flow hedges under
IAS39. '

Interest Rate Sensmwty C

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates as at the reporting
date and the stipulated change taking place at the end of the current financial year and persisting for the coming
financial year. A 100 basis points change is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates.

At the reportmg date if interest rates had been 100 basis points higher and all other vanables were held
" constant:

« Net profit would be debited by £8.9m (2017: debited by £14.0m). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s

exposure to interest rates on variable rate borrowings. )

» Other equity reserves would be credited by £15.8m (2017: credited by £15.6m) mainly as a result of the

change in mark to market valuation of interest rate swaps in designated hedging relationships.

The evaluation of a decrease of 100bp in Sterling interest rates is uncertain as this currently would imply a
. negative 3 month GBP Libor rate which’ may or may not be reflected in the remainder of the Sterling interest
rate yield curve. However, a 50bp decrease in interest rate, reflected evenly across the yield curve, would result
in Net profit being credited by £4.5m (2017: credited by £7.0m) and other equity reserves debited by £8.0m
(2017: debited by £9.5m) approximately. o ‘

.
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Cross Currency Swap Contracts ' :

The Group utilises cross currency swaps and short term FX swaps to hedge against the foreign currency

exposure that arises from the issuance of debt in foreign currency. The contracts are for the full amount of the

foreign currency debt raised, unless currency proceeds are required to fund currency denominated assets.

Foreign Currency Sensitivity

The Group’s sensitivity to any reasonable depreciation or appreciation of GBP against foreign currencies would
. have no material impact on the Group as all foreign currency debt is hedged using derivative instruments.

Information concerning the Group’s cross currency swaps is included in note 13.

Fair Value Hedges ‘

-Fair value hedges are used by the Group to protect it against changes in the fair value of f nancial assets and

financial liabilities due to movements in’ foreign currency exchange and interest rates. The hedged items include

foreign currency borrowings and both listed and unlisted debt instruments. The Group uses cross currency
. swaps to hedge against specifically identified foreign currency and interest rate risks.

Cash Flow Hedges

The Group is exposed to variability in future interest cash flows on non-tradmg assets and llablllthS which bear
interest at a variable rate. The Group uses interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges of these interest rate risks.
Also, as a result of firm commitments in foreign currencies, such as‘foreign currency debt, the Group is exposed
to foreign exchange and interest rate risks which are hedged with cross currency interest rate swaps.

Credit risk

This is the risk that customers are unable to make their loan or lease repayments when due. Hitachi Capital may
not accurately assess this risk, or be exposed to an unforeseen increase in the number of customers defaulting on
their loans and incur increased levels of bad debts.

Residual value risk

This is the risk that the value of a physical asset, at the end of an operating or finance lease contract or at the end
of its useful life, is worth less than its book value. Residual value risk occurs within our Vehicle Solutxons and
Busmcss Finance businesses.

Future residual values are assessed individually, and positioned against competitor benchmark assets, and
require senior management approval. The residual value position is monitored with reference to various industry
benchmarking sources so that maturities can be managed effectively and any impairment risk minimised.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, failed processes or external events.
When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory
implications, or lead to financial loss. The Group cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it
endeavours to manage these risks through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential
risks. The Group has an Operational Risk Committee which is comprised of members of HCUK Executive
Committee, one non-executive Director, and several other senior risk managers. The committee meets monthly
and reviews the operational risk registers of each business unit and function, and any operational risk incidents
that have been reported. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation
procedures, staff education and-assessment processes.
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Capital risk management -

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Group
consists of debt, which includes borrowings disclosed in note 14, cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed
in note 19 and the statement of changes in equity on page 44. The Board of Directors reviews the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As a part of this review the Board considers the cost of capital and risks -
associated with each source of funds. The Group will balance its overall capltal structure through the payment of
dividends to or capital mJectlon from the parent company.

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised by the Group

The Group operates two Securitisation programmes that are shown on the Group’s Statement of Financial
Position because as of the reporting date the majority of the risks and rewards on the transterred assets are.
retained by the Group, refer note 2.

Consumer Secu_rltlsatlon programme

In accordance with the terms and conditions, as at 31 March 2018 the Group (and the Company) had transferred
£385.5m (2017: £250.3m) of its instalment finance agreements, with a fair value of £381.7m (2017: £246.9m) to
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc,’which acts as a trustee.

The Group continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the receivables and has recognised the cash
received on the transfer as borrowings on the, Group’s statement of financial position - being a total of £300m
(2017: £200m), with a fair value of £300m (2017: £200m) as at the reporting date.

SME Securitisation programme

In accordance with the terms and conditions, as at 31 March 2018 the Group (and the Company) had transferred
£125.9m (2017: £126.3m) of its hire purchase and finance lease receivables, with a fair value of £125.3m (2017:
£125.6m) to The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, which acts as a trustee.

The Group continues to recognise the full carrying amount of the receivables and has recogniséd the cash’
received on the transfer as borrowings on the Group’s statement of financial position - being a total of £100.0m
{(2017: £100.0m), with a fair value of £100.0m (2017: £100.0m) as at the reporting date.

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised by the Group

During the year, the Group sold tranches of instalment finance receivables to special purpose entities under two
programmes, Securitisation Of Consumer Agreements (SOCA) and Securitisation Of Unsecured Loans DAC
(SOUL DAC). The transactions resulted in full derecognition of the financial assets from the Group’s statement
- of Financial Position on the basis that the Group has transferred sufficient risks and rewards and had surrendered
control over the transferred assets.
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Securitisation Of Consumer Agreements (SOCA)

Following the transfer, the Group continues to act as a servicer of the transferred assets, with a servicing fee of
0.8% (2017: 0.8%) of outstanding capital balance paid on a monthly basis. The Group has also provided a

subordinated debt with a carrying amount and fair value of £18.9m (2017: £10.1m). This has been reported

wlthm loans and receivables on the balance sheet. -

The followmg table summarises the impact on the Group s statement of financial position and maximum
exposure to risk as a result of its continuous involvement:

2018 2017

£m £m
Carrying Value . 3 189 " 10.1
Fair value 18.9 10.1
_Maximum exposure : . 18.9 10.1

2018 2017

£m £m

Interest income - 4.1 ' 08

" Other Income / (charges) . ) A . 0.6 . (0.3)

4.7 ) 0.5

Securitisation Of Unsecured Loans DAC (SOUL DAC)

Following the transfer,.the Group continues to act as a servicer of the transferred assets, with a servicing fee of
1.5% (2017: 1.5%) of outstanding capital balance paid on a monthly basis. The Group has also provided

subordinated debt with a carrying amount of £36.2m (2017: £17.3m). This has been reported within loans and

receivables on the balance sheet. '

The following table summarises the impact on the ‘Group’s statement of financial posiiion and maximum
exposure to risk as a result of its continuous involvement:

2018 2017

A ‘ £m £m
"Carrying value _ ’ 36.2 C 17.3 -
Fair value - : 370 17.9
Maximum exposure : ' Lo : 37.0 17.9

2018 . 2017

£m £m

Interest income : 2.6 - 0.6
Other income / (charges) : 5.4 ~(0.2)
8.0 0.4
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29 Non adjusting events after the financial period

-~

On 25 June 2018 , the Financial Conduct Authority approved the proposed acquisition by the Company of the
entire issued share capital of Franchise Finance Ltd. The acquisition was completed on 26th June 2018 for an
initial cash consideration of £4m. ’
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